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1. Foreword

Forms Version C Application Guide —Revised November 25, 2014

This application guide includes changes to the SF424 Research & Related (R&R) form C
instructions necessitated by the OMB renewal and Grants.gov’s subsequent release of updated
forms in June 2013. Changes have also been made to various PHS 398 forms and instructions
approved by OMB in August 2012 and released by Grants.gov in June 2013. Parts II (Supplemental
Instructions for Preparing the Human Subjects Section of the Research Plan) and III (Policies,
Assurances, Definitions, and Other Information) of the previous version of the application guide
have been moved to a stand-alone document titled, “Supplemental Grant Application Instructions.”

Modifications include the following:

SF424 (R&R) Forms

System for Award Management (SAM) Registration

« A change from the requirement to register with the Central Contractor Registry Database
(CCR) to the System for Award Management (SAM).

SF 424 (R&R) Form

o A name change, previously the SF 424 (R&R) Cover Form

o A new field for the “Previous Grants.gov Tracking ID” is included. Form behavior will be
adjusted so that applications with Submission Type of “Change/Corrected Application”
require an entry in the “Previous Grants.gov Tracking ID” field rather than requiring an
entry in the “Federal Identifier” field.

o The Person to be contacted section of the Applicant Information has expanded to include the
additional contact information we have been including on the PHS 398 Cover Page
Supplement form. The additional contact information has been removed from the PHS 398
Cover Page Supplement.

o The label for the “SFLL or other Explanatory Documentation” has been changed to “SFLLL
(Disclosure of Lobbying Activities) or other Explanatory Documentation.”

o A new “Cover Letter Attachment” has been added and a separate PHS Cover Letter form
will no longer be used. However, NIH will continue to keep the Cover Letter separate from
the assembled application image and available only to authorized staff.

SF 424 (R&R) Sr/Key Person Expanded Form

o The number of Sr/Key Persons that can be entered has been expanded from 40 to 100.
SF 424 (R&R) Project Performance Site Locations Form

o The number of Performance Sites that can be entered has been expanded from 30 to 300.
PHS 398 Forms

Planned Enrollment Report Form & PHS 398 Cumulative Inclusion Enrollment Report Form



http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/424/SupplementalInstructions.pdf

o Added optional inclusion forms in application packages to allow for the collection as
discrete data rather than .pdf attachments.

¢« Removed enrollment and inclusion attachment fields from PHS 398 Research Plan

PHS 398 Research Plan Form

« Removed “Application Type” section.
o« Removed “Research Plan Attachment” header.

« Removed Inclusion and Enrollment attachments (now separate forms in the application
package).
« Made adjustments to format and numbering.

PHS 398 Cover Page Supplement Form

« Removed Applicant Organization Contact information that will be included on SF 424 R&R
Form.

o Added fields from PHS 398 Checklist form. The separate PHS 398 Checklist Form will no
longer be used.

o Limit of collection of human embryonic stem cell lines has increased from 20 to 200.
o Made adjustments to format and numbering.

Notes

For additional details on all the form changes noted above, see NIH Guide Notice NOT-OD-13-
074.

This application guide contains instructions and other useful information for preparing SBIR/STTR
grant applications to the National Institutes of Health (NIH) and other Public Health Service (PHS)
agencies for:

Small Business Innovation Research (SBIR) Grants

Small Business Technology Transfer (STTR) Grants

This application guide is used as a companion document to the SF424 Research and Related
(R&R) application forms. In addition to the SF424 (R&R) forms, applications to NIH and other
PHS agencies will include agency-specific forms, titled “PHS 398.” These PHS 398 forms were
developed to continue the collection of agency-specific data required for a complete application.
While these agency-specific forms are not identical to the PHS 398 application form pages, the
PHS 398 reference is used to distinguish these additional data requirements from the data collected
in the SF424 (R&R) forms. A complete SBIR/STTR application to NIH and other PHS agencies
will include SF424 (R&R) forms and PHS 398 forms. Instructions for all application forms, SF424
(R&R) and PHS 398, are found in this document.

The use of these forms also involves electronic submission of completed applications through
Grants.gov. Specific Funding Opportunity Announcements (FOAs) will clearly indicate which
forms and submission process an applicant should use. NIH will continue to use Requests for
Applications (RFAs) and Program Announcements (PAs) as categories of FOAs. See Section 2.4.2
for definitions.



http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-OD-13-074.html
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For purposes of this document, any references to “NIH” may also mean “NIH and other PHS
agencies” such the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), the Food and Drug
Administration (FDA), and the Administration for Children and Families (ACF).

1.1 Application Guide Format

This application guide is organized into three distinct parts:

Part I: Instructions for Preparing and Submitting the Application. Part I includes
specific instructions for completing the application forms as well as information on
electronically submitting applications through Grants.gov.

Parts II and III are incorporated into this application guide by reference. They are in a
separate document titled, “Supplemental Instructions.”

Part II: Supplemental Instructions for Preparing the Human Subjects Section of the
Research Plan. Part II is to be used if your proposed research will involve human subjects.
These instructions assist in determining whether human subjects are involved and include
scenarios and detailed instructions for completing the PHS 398 Research Plan form.

Part I1I: Policies, Assurances, Definitions, and Other Information. Part III includes
information on policies, assurances, definitions, and other information relating to submission
of applications to the PHS. Applicants should refer to this document as well as the
instructional materials, Grants Information (GrantsInfo), and the relevant Grants Policy
Statement for additional sources of information. The NIH Grants Policy Statement applies to
all NIH awardees; other PHS agencies use the HHS Grants Policy Statement.

1.2 NIH Extramural Research and Research Training
Programs

The NIH Office of Extramural Research Grants homepage (http://grants.nih.gov/grants/oer.htm)
provides an array of helpful information. Applicants are encouraged to bookmark this site and visit
it often.

The Division of Communications and Outreach (DCO) is the central source for general
information about NIH extramural research and research training programs, funding activity codes,
the peer review system, and application procedures. Grants Information (GrantsInfo) is a
communication service within the DCO. Information about the NIH extramural research and
research training programs, funding opportunities, and the grant application process, can be
obtained by e-mailing your request to: GrantsInfo@nih.gov or by calling (301) 435-0714.
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1.3 Program Guidelines

1.3.1 Three-Phase Program

Both the SBIR and STTR programs are structured in three phases, the first two of which are
supported using SBIR/STTR funds. The stated Phase I and Phase Il award levels and project
periods are statutory guidelines, not ceilings. Therefore, applicants are encouraged to propose a
budget and project duration period that is reasonable and appropriate for completion of the research
project.

Deviations from the indicated statutory award amount and project period guidelines are
acceptable, but must be well justified and should be discussed with NIH Program Staff
prior to submission of the application. (CDC, FDA, and ACF do not make awards greater
than the stated guidelines.) The budgets of SBIR and STTR applications will be evaluated
to assess the appropriateness of the budget to the timeliness of the research goals and may
be reduced on a case-by-case basis as recommended by peer reviewers, Institute/Center
Advisory Board/Council, or program staff. When making awards, NIH reserves the right
to withhold or reduce grant funding on applications at any ranking based on program
priority.

Funding levels for projects are determined through the combined interaction among peer review,
grants management, program, budget, and other Institute and/or Centers (IC) staff. These levels
are based on allowable costs that are consistent with the principles of sound cost management and
in consideration of IC priorities, constraints on the growth of average grant costs, and the
availability of funds.

Phase 1. The objective of Phase I is to establish the technical/scientific merit and feasibility of the
proposed R/R&D efforts. Preliminary data may be included but are not required. The application
should concentrate on R/R&D efforts that will significantly contribute to proving the scientific or
technical feasibility of the approach or concept that would be a prerequisite to further support in
Phase II.

SBIR Phase I awards normally may not exceed $150,000 total (direct costs, facilities and
administrative (F&A)/indirect costs, and fee) for a period normally not to exceed 6 months. STTR
Phase T awards normally may not exceed $150,000 total for a period of 1 year.

Phase I1. The objective of Phase II is to continue the research or R&D efforts initiated in Phase 1.
Funding shall be based on the results of Phase I and the scientific and technical merit and
commercial potential of the Phase II application.

All Phase II applications must include a succinct Commercialization Plan. Specific details
for preparing this section are described in Section 4.9 of this Application Guide.

SBIR Phase IT awards normally may not exceed $1,000,000 total (direct costs, F&A/indirect costs,
and fee) for a period normally not to exceed 2 years. STTR Phase II awards normally may not
exceed $1,000,000 total (direct costs, F&A/indirect costs, and fee) for a period normally not to
exceed 2 years.




According to statutory guidelines, total funding support (direct costs, indirect costs, fee) normally
may not exceed $150,000 for Phase I awards and $1,000,000 for Phase IT awards. With appropriate
justification from the applicant, Congress will allow awards to exceed these amounts by up to 50%
($225,000 for Phase I and $1,500,000 for Phase II, a hard cap). As written in the statute and under
appropriate circumstances, NIH can apply for a waiver from SBA to issue an award exceeding
$225,000 for Phase I or $1,500,000 for Phase II, if this hard cap will interfere with NIH ‘s ability to
meet its mission. Award waivers from the SBA are not guaranteed and may delay the release of
funds. Applicants are strongly encouraged to contact NIH program officials prior to submitting any
award in excess of the guidelines. In all cases, applicants should propose a budget that is
reasonable and appropriate for completion of the research project.

Unless the Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA) states otherwise, only Phase I awardees are
eligible to apply for and obtain Phase Il funding. Awardees identified via a “successor-in-interest”
or “novated” or similarly-revised funding agreement, or those that have reorganized with the same
key staff, regardless of whether they have been assigned a different tax identification number, are
eligible to apply for Phase II funding. Agencies may require the original awardee to relinquish its
rights and interests in an SBIR/STTR project in favor of another applicant as a condition for that
applicant’s eligibility to participate in the SBIR/STTR program for that project.

Only one new Phase II award may be made for a single SBIR/ STTR project.

You may submit a Phase II or [IB application either before or after expiration of the Phase I or II
budget period respectively, unless you elect to submit a Phase I and Phase II application
concurrently under the Fast-Track procedure. To maintain eligibility to seek Phase Il or IIB
support, a Phase I grantee organization should submit a Phase Il or IIB application within the first
six receipt dates following the expiration of the Phase I or Il budget period respectively.

Phase I11. An objective of the SBIR/STTR program is to increase private sector
commercialization of innovations derived from Federal R/R&D. During Phase III, the small
business concern (SBC) is to pursue commercialization with non-SBIR/STTR funds (either Federal
or non-Federal). In some Federal agencies, Phase III may involve follow-on, non-SBIR/STTR
funded R&D, or production contracts for products or processes intended for use by the U.S.
Government.

The competition for SBIR/STTR Phase I and Phase Il awards satisfies any competition
requirement of the Armed Services Procurement Act, the Federal Property and Administrative
Services Act, and the Competition in Contracting Act. Therefore, an agency that wishes to fund an
SBIR/STTR Phase III project is not required to conduct another competition in order to satisfy
those statutory provisions. As a result, in conducting actions relative to a Phase III SBIR/STTR
award, it is sufficient to state for purposes of a Justification and Approval pursuant to FAR 6.302-5
that the project is an SBIR/STTR Phase III award that is derived from, extends, or logically
concludes efforts performed under prior SBIR/STTR funding agreements and is authorized under
10 U.S.C. 2304(b)(2) or 41 U.S.C. 253(b)(2).

1.3.2 Fast-Track Applications

CDC, FDA, and ACF do not accept Fast-Track applications.




The NIH Fast-Track mechanism expedites the decision and award of SBIR and STTR Phase II
funding for scientifically meritorious applications that have a high potential for commercialization.
Fast-Track incorporates a submission and review process in which both Phase I and Phase II grant
applications are submitted and reviewed together. The Specific Aims section of the Phase I portion
of a Fast-Track must specify clear, measurable goals (milestones) that should be achieved prior to
initiating Phase II work. In addition, as is required for all Phase II applications, the Phase II portion
of a Fast-Track application must present a Commercialization Plan (maximum 12 pages) that
addresses specific points (see Section 4.8).

The Fast-Track application will receive a single rating for the entire proposed project (i.e., it will
receive a numerical score or it will receive an “unscored” designation).

Below are general instructions for preparing NIH SBIR/STTR Fast-Track applications. More
specific instructions are provided in Sections 4 and 5 of this application guide.

« Follow the instructions as provided through Section 3, using the Grant Application Package.
o Use the forms in Section 4.6, R&R Budget Form: Complete Budget Period 1 for Phase [;
complete Budget Periods 2 and 3 (or more, if appropriate) for Phase II;

o Prepare the Research Strategy in accordance with Section 5.4, Research Plan Form, using
the PHS 398 Research Plan for items 2-3 in each Phase (Phase I and Phase II plans must be
contained within 12 pages).

« Identify the application as “Fast-Track™ at the beginning of the “Specific Aims” portion of
the PHS 398 Research Plan.

o Under the heading “Phase I Segment,” follow the instructions for the remainder of the
application as provided in the Research Plan Form.

« Upon completion of all the requirements for Phase I, use the heading “Phase II Segment”
and repeat the process for that portion of the proposed project.

Phase I and Phase II are considered separate funding agreements under the Fast-Track Initiative.
Therefore, Phase I Fast-Track awardees must recertify that they meet all of the eligibility criteria
for an SBIR or STTR award prior to issuance of the Phase II award.

1.3.3 Supplemental Applications

Under special circumstances, requests for supplemental funds to existing NIH SBIR/STTR grants
or requests for an extension of the period of support with funds may be considered. (The awarding
of supplemental funds applies to NIH ONLY, as CDC, FDA, and ACF do not make awards greater
than the stated guidelines.) See Section 2.8.

1.3.4 SBIR/STTR Program Eligibility

Each applicant submitting an SBIR/STTR grant application must qualify as a small business
concern (SBC) at the time of award. The following sections provide more details about these
eligibility criteria.

SBA released the revised, final size rule on December 27, 2012, with a 30-day implementation
window effective January 28, 2013.



https://www.federalregister.gov/articles/2012/12/27/2012-30809/small-business-size-regulations-small-business-innovation-research-sbir-program-and-small-business

SBCs that are majority-owned by multiple venture capital operating companies (VCOCs),
hedge funds or private equity firms are NOW eligible to apply to the NIH SBIR program at
this time for any NIH SBIR funding opportunity announcement (FOA) issued after January
28, 2013. As of July 10, 2014, CDC will now accept SBIR applications from VC-owned SBCs
in response to NEW SBIR solicitations issued going forward. Small business concerns that
are more than 50% owned by multiple venture capital operating companies, hedge funds,
private equity firms, or any combination of these are NOT eligible to apply to the FDA, and
ACF SBIR program and to the NIH STTR program.

NIH has many SBIR and STTR FOAs available for the community, many of which were issued
prior to January 28, 2013. Applicants are advised to read FOAs very carefully, as eligibility and
budget requirements may differ, depending on when the FOA was issued. Applicants are required
to follow the guidance and instructions within the FOA they choose to apply for. As such, the
eligibility requirements for small business concerns will depend on whether the FOA was issued
prior or after January 28, 2013 as listed below.

1.3.4.1 Organizational Criteria

SBIR Program

For SBIR FOAs issued prior to January 28, 2013:

Only United States small business concerns (SBCs) are eligible to submit SBIR applications. A
small business concern is one that, on the date of award for both Phase I and Phase II funding
agreements:

1. Is organized for profit, with a place of business located in the United States, which operates
primarily within the United States or which makes a significant contribution to the United
States economy through payment of taxes or use of American products, materials or labor;

2. Is in the legal form of an individual proprietorship, partnership, limited liability company,
corporation, joint venture, association, trust or cooperative, except that where the form is a
joint venture, there can be no more than 49 percent participation by foreign business entities
in the joint venture;

3. Is atleast 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more individuals who are citizens of,
or permanent resident aliens in, the United States, except in the case of a joint venture,
where each entity to the venture must be 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more
individuals who are citizens of, or permanent resident aliens in, the United States; and

4. Has, including its affiliates, not more than 500 employees.
FOR SBIR FOAs issued after January 28, 2013:

Only United States small business concerns (SBCs) are eligible to submit applications for this
opportunity. A small business concern is one that, at the time of award of Phase I and Phase 11,
meets all of the following criteria:

1. Is organized for profit, with a place of business located in the United States, which
operates primarily within the United States or which makes a significant contribution
to the United States economy through payment of taxes or use of American products,
materials or labor;




2. Is the legal form of an individual proprietorship, partnership, limited liability
company, corporation, joint venture, association, trust or cooperative, except that
where the form is a joint venture, there must be less than 50 percent participation by
foreign business entities in the joint venture;

3. i. Be a concern which is more than 50% directly owned and controlled by one or
more individuals (who are citizens or permanent resident aliens of the United
States), other business concerns (each of which is more than 50% directly
owned and controlled by individuals who are citizens or permanent resident
aliens of the United States), or any combination of these; OR

ii. NIH only. Be a concern which is more than 50% owned by multiple venture
capital operating companies, hedge funds, private equity firms, or any
combination of these. No single venture capital operating company, hedge
fund, or private equity firm may own more than 50% of the concern; OR

iii. Be a joint venture in which each entity to the joint venture must meet the
requirements set forth in paragraph 3 (i) or 3 (ii) of this section. A joint venture
that includes one or more concerns that meet the requirements of paragraph (ii)
of this section must comply with § 121.705(b) concerning registration and
proposal requirements.

4. Has, including its affiliates, not more than 500 employees.

i. NIH and CDC only. If the concern is more than 50% owned by multiple
venture capital operating companies, hedge funds, private equity firms, or any
combination of these falls under 3 (ii) or 3 (iii) above, see Section IV.
Application and Submission Information in the SBIR FOA for additional
instructions regarding required application certification.

See 4.4 Other Project Information Form instructions for additional requirements for small
business concerns that are more than 50% owned by multiple venture capital operating
companies, hedge funds, private equity firms.

STTR Program

For STTR FOAs issued prior to January 28, 2013:

Only United States small business concerns (SBCs) are eligible to submit STTR applications. A
small business concern is one that, on the date of award for both Phase I and Phase II funding
agreements:

1. Is organized for profit, with a place of business located in the United States, which operates
primarily within the United States or which makes a significant contribution to the United
States economy through payment of taxes or use of American products, materials or labor;

2. Isin the legal form of an individual proprietorship, partnership, limited liability company,
corporation, joint venture, association, trust or cooperative, except that where the form is a
joint venture, there can be no more than 49 percent participation by foreign business entities
in the joint venture;




3. Is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more individuals who are citizens of,
or permanent resident aliens in, the United States, except in the case of a joint venture,
where each entity to the venture must be 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more
individuals who are citizens of, or permanent resident aliens in, the United States; and

4. Has, including its affiliates, not more than 500 employees.
FOR STTR FOAs issued after January 28, 2013:

Only United States small business concerns (SBCs) are eligible to submit applications for this
opportunity. A small business concern is one that, at the time of award of Phase I and Phase II,
meets all of the following criteria:

1. Is organized for profit, with a place of business located in the United States, which operates
primarily within the United States or which makes a significant contribution to the United
States economy through payment of taxes or use of American products, materials or labor;

2. Is in the legal form of an individual proprietorship, partnership, limited liability company,
corporation, joint venture, association, trust or cooperative, except that where the form is a
joint venture, there must be less than 50 percent participation by foreign business entities in
the joint venture;

3. (i) Be a concern which is more than 50% directly owned and controlled by one or more
individuals (who are citizens or permanent resident aliens of the United States), other
business concerns (each of which is more than 50% directly owned and controlled by
individuals who are citizens or permanent resident aliens of the United States), or any
combination of these; OR

4. (ii) Be a joint venture in which each entity to the joint venture must meet the requirements
set forth in paragraph 3 (i) of this section. A joint venture that includes one or more
concerns that meet the requirements of paragraph (ii) of this section must comply with §
121.705(b) concerning registration and proposal requirements. Has, including its affiliates,
not more than 500 employees.

SBIR and STTR

Control can be exercised through common ownership, common management, and contractual
relationships. The term "affiliates" is defined in greater detail in 13 CFR 121.3-2(a). The term
"number of employees" is defined in 13 CFR 121.3-2(t).

Business concerns include, but are not limited to, any individual (sole proprietorship), partnership,
corporation, joint venture, association, or cooperative. Further information may be obtained by
contacting the Small Business Administration Size District Office at http://sba.gov/size.

One of the circumstances that would lead to a finding that an organization is controlling or has the
power to control another organization involves sharing common office space and/or employees
and/or other facilities (e.g., laboratory space). Access to special facilities or equipment in another
organization is permitted (as in cases where the awardee organization has entered into a
subcontractual agreement with another organization for a specific, limited portion of the research
project). However, research space occupied by an SBIR awardee organization must be space that
is available to and under the control of the SBIR awardee for the conduct of its portion of the
proposed project.



http://sba.gov/size

Title 13 CFR 121.3 also states that control or the power to control exists when “key employees of
one concern organize a new concern ... and serve as its officers, directors, principal stockholders,
and/or key employees, and one concern is furnishing or will furnish the other concern with
subcontracts, financial or technical assistance, and/or other facilities, whether for a fee or
otherwise.” Where there is indication of sharing of common employees, a determination will be
made on a case-by-case basis of whether such sharing constitutes control or the power to control.

For purposes of the SBIR and STTR program, personnel obtained through a Professional Employer
Organization or other similar personnel leasing company may be considered employees of the
awardee. This is consistent with SBA’s size regulations, 13 CFR 121.106 — Small Business Size
Regulations.

Note regarding affiliation arising under stock options, convertible securities, and agreements
to merge: In determining size, SBA considers stock options, convertible securities, and
agreements to merge (including agreements in principle) to have a present effect on the power to
control a concern. SBA treats such options, convertible securities, and agreements as though the
rights granted have been exercised. See http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/cr
2005/jangtr/pdf/13cfr121.103.pdf.

If an Employee Stock Ownership Plan owns all or part of the concern, each stock trustee and plan
member is considered an owner.

If a trust owns all or part of the concern, each trustee and trust beneficiary is considered an owner.

All SBIR and STTR grant applications will be examined with the above eligibility considerations
in mind. If it appears that an applicant organization does not meet the eligibility requirements, NIH
will request a size determination by the SBA. If eligibility is unclear, NIH will not make an SBIR
or STTR award until the SBA provides a determination.

Note: An applicant organization that has been determined previously by SBA to be “other than
small” for a size standard of not more than 500 employees or for purposes of the SBIR/STTR
program, the organization must be recertified by the SBA prior to any future SBIR/STTR awards

1.4 Interactions with PHS Staff

Applicants are strongly encouraged to communicate with PHS staff throughout the entire
application, review and award process. Web site addresses and staff phone numbers of relevant
NIH awarding components and other PHS agencies are listed in the table below.
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Table 1.4-1. Awarding Component Contact Information

AWARDING COMPONENT

PROGRAM CONTACT

GRANTS MGMT.
CONTACT

National Institute on Aging

http://www.nia.nih.gov

National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and
Alcoholism

http://www.niaaa.nih.gov

National Institute of Allergy and Infectious
Diseases

http://www.niaid.nih.gov

National Institute of Arthritis and
Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases

http://www.niams.nih.gov/

National Institute of Biomedical Imaging
and Bioengineering

http://www.nibib.nih.gov/

National Cancer Institute

http://sbir.cancer.gov

Dr. Michael-David A.R.R. Kerns
Phone: 301-402-7713
Fax: 301-402-2945

Email: Michael-
David.Kerns@nih.gov

Dr. Kathy Jung
Phone: 301-443-8744
Fax: 301-594-0673

Email: jungma@mail.nih.gov

Dr. Natalia Kruchinin
Phone: 301-496-8666
Fax: 301-496-8729

Email: kruchininn@niaid.nih.gov

Ms. Linda Whipp
Phone: 301-496-1472
Fax: 301-402-3672

Email:
Linda.Whipp@nih.gov

Ms. Judy Fox

Phone: 301-443-4704
Fax: 301-443-3891
Email: Judy.Fox@nih.gov

Ms. Deanna L. Ingersoll
Phone: 301-451-2686

Email:
ingersolld@niaid.nih.gov

Dr. Xibin Wang
Phone: 301-451-3884
Fax: 301-480-1284

Email: wangx1@mail.nih.gov

Mr. Todd Merchak
Phone: 301-496-8592
Fax: 301-480-1614

Email: merchakt@mail.nih.gov

Mr. Michael Weingarten
Dr. Greg Evans

Dr. Andrew Kurtz
Phone: 240-276-5300
Fax: 240-276-5236

Email: ncisbir@mail.nih.gov

Ms. Artisha Y. Wright
Phone: 301-496-7065

Email:
artisha.wright@nih.gov

Mr. Erik (Timothy) Edgerton
Phone: 301-594-3968
Fax: 301-480-5450

Email:
edgertont@mail.nih.gov

Mr. James Huff

Phone: 301-451-4786
Fax: 301-451-5735
Email: huffi@mail.nih.gov

Ms. Jacquelyn Boudjeda
Phone: 240-276-6312
Fax: 301-496-8662

Email:
boudjedaj@mail.nih.gov
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AWARDING COMPONENT

PROGRAM CONTACT

GRANTS MGMT.
CONTACT

Eunice Kennedy Shriver National Institute
of Child Health and Human Development

http://www.nichd.nih.gov

National Institute on Drug Abuse

http://www.nida.nih.gov

National Institute on Deafness and Other
Communication Disorders

http://www.nidcd.nih.gov

National Institute of Dental and
Craniofacial Research

http://www.nidcr.nih.gov

National Institute of Diabetes and
Digestive and Kidney Diseases

http://www.niddk.nih.gov

National Institute of Environmental Health
Sciences

http://www.niehs.nih.gov

Louis A. Quatrano, Ph.D.
Phone: 301-402-4221
Fax: 301-402-0832

Email: Louis.Quatrano@nih.gov

Elena Koustova, Ph.D., M.B.A
Phone: 301-496-8768

Email: koustovae@nida.nih.gov

Dr. Roger L. Miller

Phone: 301-402-3458

Fax: 301-402-6251

Email: Roger.Miller@nih.gov

Dr. R. Dwayne Lunsford
Phone: 301-594-2421
Fax: 301-480-8319

Email: lunsfordr@mail.nih.gov

Ms. Christine Densmore
Phone: 301-402-8714
Fax: 301-480-8300

Email:
densmorec@niddk.nih.gov

Dr. Daniel T. Shaughnessy
Phone: 919-541-2506
Fax: 919-541-4606

Email: shaughn1@niehs.nih.gov

Mr. Ted Williams

Phone: 301- 435-6996

Fax: 301-451-5510

Email: williate@mail.nih.gov
Ms. Diana Haikalis, M.B.A.
Phone: 301-443-6710

Fax: 301-594-6849

Email:
dhaikali@nida.nih.gov

Mr. Christopher P. Myers
Phone: 301-435-0713

Fax: 301-402-1758

Email:
Christopher.Myers@nih.gov

Ms. Diana “DeDe” Rutberg
Phone: 301-594-4798
Fax: 301-480-3562

Email:
Dede.Rutberg@nih.gov

Ms. Pamela Love
Phone: 301-435-6198
Fax:

Email: lovepa@mail.nih.gov

Ms. Pam Clark
Phone: 919-541-7629
Fax: 919-541-2860

Email:
evans3@niehs.nih.gov

Mr. Don Ellis
Phone: 919-541-1874

Email:
donaldellis@niehs.nih.gov
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AWARDING COMPONENT ~ PROGRAM CONTACT ~ GRANTS MGMT.

CONTACT
Dr. Jerome Wujek Mr. William Darby
National Eye Institute Phone: 301-451-2020 Phone: 301-451-2020
http://www.nei.nih.gov Fax: 301-496-2297 Fax: 301-496-9997
Email: wujekjer@nei.nih.gov Email: wwd@nei.nih.gov

Dr. Scott Somers Ms. Patrice Molnar

Na.tlonal Institute of General Medical Phone: 301-594-3827 Phone: 301-594-5136 Fax:
Sciences 301-480-2554

. . Fax: 301-480-2802
http://www.nigms.nih.gov/ Email:

Email: somerss@nigms.nih.gov

molnarp@nigms.nih.gov
Mr. Andre Walker
Phone: 301-435-0166
Fax: 301-451-5462
Email:

Dr. Jennifer Shieh Andre.Walker@nih.gov
Phone: 301-443-8785

Email: jennifer.shieh@nih.gov Mr. Hubert Walters
Phone: 301-435-0166
Fax: 301-451-5462

Email:
waltersh@nhlbi.nih.gov

Ms. Cheryl Chick

National Heart, Lung, and Blood Institute

http://www.nhlbi.nih.gov

National Human Genome Research Dr. Michael W. Smith Phone: 301-435-7858 Fax:
Institute Phone: 301-496-7531 301-402-1951
http://www.genome.gov Email: smithmw@mail.nih.gov Email: ChickC@mail.nih.gov

Ms. Rebecca Claycamp
Phone: 301-443-2811
Fax: 301-443-6885

Email:
rclaycam@mail.nih.gov

Ms. Priscilla Grant, J.D.,
C.RA.

Phone: 301-594-8412
Fax: 301-480-4049

Email:
Priscilla.Grant@nih.gov

Dr. Margaret C. Grabb
National Institute of Mental Health Phone: 301-443-3563
http://www.nimh.nih.gov Fax: 301-443-1731

Email: mgrabb@mail.nih.gov

Mr. Vincent A. Thomas, Jr. MSW,

National Institute on Minority Health and MPA
Health Disparities Phone: 301-402-2516

http://www.nimhd.nih.gov/ Fax: 301-480-4049

Email: thomasvi@mail.nih.gov
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AWARDING COMPONENT

PROGRAM CONTACT

GRANTS MGMT.
CONTACT

National Institute of Neurological Disorders

and Stroke

http://www.ninds.nih.gov

National Institute of Nursing Research

http://www.ninr.nih.gov/

National Center for Advancing
Translational Sciences

http://www.ncats.nih.gov

National Center for Complementary and
Alternative Medicine

http://www.nccam.nih.gov/

National Library of Medicine

http://www.nIlm.nih.gov

Division of Program Coordination,

Planning and Strategic Initiatives, Office of

Research Infrastructure Programs

http://dpcpsi.nih.gov/ORIP/index.aspx

Ms. Stephanie Fertig

Phone: 301-496-1447

Fax: 301-480-1080

Email: fertigs@ninds.nih.gov

Mr. Augusto Diana
Phone: 301-402-6423
Email: Augusto.Diana@nih.gov

Ms. Lili M. Portilla, M.P.A.
Director, Strategic Alliances

Phone: 301-402-0304
Fax: 301-480-3661
Email: Portilll@mail.nih.gov

Ms. Tijuanna Decoster
Phone: 301-496-9231
Fax: 301-402-4370

Email:
decostert@mail.nih.gov

Mr. Brian Albertini
Phone: 301-594-6869
Fax: 301-402-4502

Email:
albertib2@mail.nih.gov

Mr. Long Nguyen
Phone: 301-402-6737
Fax: 301-480-3777

Email:
nguyen1@mail.nih.gov

Dr. John S. Williamson
Phone: 301-496-2583

Email:
williamsonjs@mail.nih.gov

Dr. Jane Ye
Phone: 301-594-4882
Fax: 301-402-2952

Email: yej@mail.nih.gov

Dr. Miguel Contreras
Phone: 301-594-9410
Fax: 301-480-3819

Email: contre1@mail.nih.gov

Mr. George Tucker, MBA
Phone: 301-594-8853
Fax: 301-480-1552

Email:
George.Tucker@nih.gov

Mr. Dwight Mowery
Phone: 301-496-4221
Fax: 301-402-0421

Email:
moweryd@mail.nih.gov

Mr. Long Nguyen
Phone: 301-402-6737
Fax: 301-480-3777

Email:
nguyen1@mail.nih.gov
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AWARDING COMPONENT

PROGRAM CONTACT

GRANTS MGMT.
CONTACT

Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC)

http://www.cdc.gov

Food and Drug Administration (FDA)

http://www .fda.gov

Overall CDC Coordinator
Mr. Sean David Griffiths
Phone: 404-639-4641

Email: ssg3@cdc.gov

Dr. Brenda Colley Gilbert
(NCBDDD)

Phone: 770-488-8390

Email: BColleyGilbert@cdc.gov

Ms. Barbara Stewart (NCEZID)
Phone: 404-718-8832

Fax: 404-498-2626

Email: BStewart@cdc.gov

Dr. Paul Smutz (NCIPC)
Phone: 770-488-4850
Fax: 770-488-1665

Email: wsmutz@cdc.gov

Dr. Allen Robison (NIOSH)
Phone: 404-498-2509

Fax: 404-498-0751

Email: WRobison@cdc.gov

Ms. Kimberly Pendleton Chew
Phone: 301-827-9363
Fax: 301-827-0505

Email:

Ms. Roslyn Curington
(NCBDDD)

Phone: 770-488-2745
Fax: 770-488-2777
Email: RCurington@cdc.gov

Ms. Tracey Sims (NCBDDD)
Phone: 770-488-2739
Fax: 770-488-2777

Email: TraceySims@cdc.gov

Mr. Hector Buitrago
(NCEZID)

Phone: 770-488-2921
Fax: 770-488-2777
Email: HBuitrago@cdc.gov

Ms. Sharron Orum (NCIPC)
Phone: 770-488-2716
Fax: 770-488-2847

Email: SOrum@cdc.gov

Ms. Mary Pat Shanahan
(NIOSH)

Phone: 412-386-4453
Fax: 412-386-6429

Email:
MShanahan@cdc.gov

Mr. Martin Bernard
Phone: 301-443-5869
Fax: 301-827-0505

Email:

kimberly.pendleton@fda.hhs.gov | Martin.Bernard@fda.hhs.gov
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GRANTS MGMT.
CONTACT

Ms. Edeltraud Fernandez
Phone: 202-401-2346
Fax: 202-205-3598

Email:
efernandez@acf.hhs.gov

AWARDING COMPONENT PROGRAM CONTACT

Dr. Lauren Supplee
Administration for Children and Families Phone: 202-401-5434

http://www.acf.hhs.gov Email:

Lauren.Supplee@ACF.hhs.gov

More detailed information on each of the NIH awarding components, as well as the CDC and the
FDA, and their research interests are available electronically on the home pages cited in Table
1.4-1 and in the NIH, CDC, and FDA Program Descriptions and Research Topics and in the NIH,
CDC, and FDA Program Descriptions and Research Topics of the SBIR and STTR funding
opportunity announcements.

Before Submission

Applicants are strongly encouraged to contact NIH/CDC/FDA/ACEF staff with their questions
before submitting an application.

Contact GrantsInfo and/or the Division of Receipt and Referral, Center for Scientific Review
(CSR), NIH:

o To identify Institutes/Centers (ICs) at NIH or other non-NIH agencies and/or a Scientific
Review Group (SRG) that might be appropriate for your application. Note: requests for
assignment to an Institute/Center and/or an SRG may be made in the SF424 (R&R)
Form in the Cover Letter attachment at the time of application submission.

o To learn about grant programs.

o To receive advice on preparing and submitting an application (e.g., format, structure).
Contact program staff in the relevant awarding component:

o To determine whether your proposed application topic would fit into the NIH IC’s or other

non-NIH agency's programmatic area.

« To learn about programmatic areas of interest to the IC or other non-NIH agencies.

« To find out about requesting an assignment to an IC.

o To discuss whether you should respond to an RFA.

Contact Scientific Review Officers in the CSR to discuss requesting assignment to a CSR SRG.
After Submission

If the initial assignment to an IC or SRG seems inappropriate, the Program Director/Principal
Investigator (PD/PI) may request reassignment. Such requests should be made in writing to:
Division of Receipt and Referral
Center for Scientific Review
National Institutes of Health
6701 Rockledge Drive, Suite 2030, MSC 7720
Bethesda, MD 20892-7720
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Fax requests (301-480-1987) are also acceptable.

Although these requests will be carefully considered, the final determination will be made by the
PHS agency.

Applicants must never contact reviewers regarding their applications because discussion of the
scientific content of an application or an attempt to influence review outcomes will create serious
breaches of confidentiality in the review process. Reviewers are required to notify the Scientific
Review Officer if they are contacted by an applicant. Communication by the applicant to a
reviewer may delay the review or result in the return of the application without review.

After Assignment

Contact your Scientific Review Officer to discuss the review assignment, to request permission to
send additional/corrective materials, and/or to discuss any review concerns (e.g., expertise needed
on your SRG, conflicts, reviewers that may have bias).

After Peer Review

Feedback to applicants is very important. Once the PD/PI reviews the Summary Statement in the
eRA Commons (paper copies of the Peer Review Outcome Letter and Summary Statement will not
be mailed to the PI. Electronic copies may be accessed through the eRA Commons), the
appropriate awarding component program official noted in the Summary Statement may be
contacted:

o To discuss the review outcome of the application and obtain guidance.
o To get feedback and answers to any questions about the Summary Statement.

o To find out the meaning of a numerical designation pertaining to human subjects or
vertebrate animals in the Summary Statement.

o To find out the funding status of an application.

1.5 Grants Policy Statements

o The NIH Grants Policy Statement serves as a term and condition of award and is a
compilation of the salient features of policies and various policy issues regarding the
administration of NIH awards.

o The HHS Grants Policy Statement serves as a term and condition of award and is a
compilation of the salient features of policies and various policy issues regarding the
administration of grant awards from other PHS agencies, excluding NIH awards.

1.6 References

Applicants New to NIH: Getting Started

http://grants.nih.gov/grants/useful links.htm

Award Information and Data
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http://report.nih.gov/index.aspx
NIH Research Portfolio Online Reporting Tool (RePORT)

Contact Information for an NIH Staff Person

http://ned.nih.gov
NIH locator: (301) 496-4000

Applying Electronically

For additional information on the electronic submission process, including self-help
resources, training material and answers to frequently asked questions, see:

http://grants.nih.gov/grants/ElectronicReceipt/index.htm

eRA Commons

https://commons.era.nih.gov/commons/index.jsp

Institutions and PD/Pls are required to register with the eRA Commons. Registered PD/Pls
can check assignment/contact information, review outcome, and other important
information. For more details on Commons registration, see Section 2.2.2.

Telephone: 1-866-504-9552 (toll-free) or 301-402-7469. Business hours are M-F 7am-8pm
Eastern Time.

eRA Commons Help Desk: http://era.nih.gov/help/

Grant Writing Tips and Sample Applications

http://erants.nih.gov/grants/grant tips.htm

http://grants.nih.gov/grants/grants process.htm

Grants Information

http://grants.nih. gov/grants/giwelcome.htm

E-mail: GrantsInfo@nih.gov
Telephone: (301) 435-0714; (301) 451-5936 (TTY)
Grants.gov User Guide

The Grants.gov User Guide is a comprehensive reference to information about Grants.gov.
Applicants can download the User Guide at the following address: .
http://www.grants.gov/documents/19/18243/GrantsgovApplicantUserGuide.pdf

NIH Grants and Funding Help Page

http://grants.nih. gov/support/index.html

This site provides a self-help wizard to guide inquiries to the correct NIH website for
additional information on specific topics.

NIH Office of Extramural Research Human Subjects Website
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http://grants.nih.gov/grants/policy/hs/index.htm

This site provides, in one place, HHS and NIH requirements and resources for the
extramural community involved in human subjects research.

Office for Human Research Protections (Department of Health and Human Services)

http://www.hhs.gov/ohrp

Information about human subject protections, Institutional Review Boards, and Federal
Wide Assurances

Telephone: 1-866-447-4777 or (301) 496-7005
Office of Laboratory Animal Welfare (OLAW)

http://olaw.nih.gov

Information about animal welfare policy requirements, Institutional Animal Care and Use
Committees (IACUC), and Animal Welfare Assurances

Telephone: (301) 496-7163
Receipt/Referral of an Application

https://grants.nih.gov/grants/receipt referral.htm

Division of Receipt and Referral
Center for Scientific Review
Telephone: (301) 435-0715

Fax: (301) 480-1987

Email: csrdrr@mail.nih.gov

SBA Company Registry

http://sbir.gov/registration

New requirement for all SBIR/STTR applicants. (Questions regarding required registration
at the SBA Company Registry and for technical questions or issues)

Telephone: (571) 306-5201
Website to Email: http://sbir.gov/feedback?type=reg

Small Business Administration SBIR/STTR Website
http://sbir.gov
Specific Application: Before Review

Telephone or e-mail the Scientific Review Officer identified for the application in the eRA
Commons.

Specific Application: Post Review
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Telephone or e-mail the NIH Program Official named in the Summary Statement for the
application.

1.6.1 Other Resources

FDA Resources and Useful Web Sites

The Food and Drug Administration offers various types of information to small businesses engaged
in research projects that will ultimately require FDA approval. This information could be valuable
in formulating research aims designed for this purpose, especially those in later stages of
development (e.g., Investigational New Drug [IND] filing).

Small Business Assistance: http://www.fda.gov/cder/about/smallbiz/default.htm

Drug Approval Application Process:
http://www.fda.gov/Drugs/DevelopmentApprovalProcess/FormsSubmissionR equirements/de

fault.htm

Center for Drug Evaluation and Research (CDER): http://www.fda.gov/cder/

Center for Biologics Evaluation and Research (CBER): http://www.fda.gov/cber/

Center for Devices and Radiological Health (CDRH):
http://www.fda.gov/AboutFDA/CentersOffices/OfficeofMedicalProductsandTobacco/CDR

H/default.htm

International Conference on Harmonisation of Technical Requirements for Registration of
Pharmaceuticals for Human Use (ICH): http://www.ich.org

Guidance Documents: http://www.fda.gov/cder/guidance

Applicants should be aware that not all information in these documents apply to drugs
intended for use in patients with serious and life-threatening diseases (e.g., for refractory
metastatic cancers).

Drug development, drug review, and postmarketing activities:

The FDA's Drug Review Process: Ensuring Drugs are Safe and Effective. FDA Consumer
magazine article.

From Test Tube to Patient: Improving Health Through Human Drugs. In-depth review of
drug development and post-marketing activities.

New Drug Development in the United States. Online seminar provides healthcare
professionals with an overview of FDA's role in the new drug development process.

SBIR/STTR LISTSERV

To get timely information about the SBIR/STTR programs, send an e-mail to
LISTSERV@LIST.NIH.GOV with the following text in the message body: subscribe SBIR-STTR
<your name> (e.g., subscribe SBIR-STTR Jane Doe). (The LISTSERYV will retrieve your e-mail
address from the “From:” section of your e-mail message.)
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1.7 Authorization

The PHS requests the information described in these instructions pursuant to its statutory
authorities for awarding grants, contained in Sections 301(a) and 487 of the PHS Act, as amended
(42 U.S.C. 241a and 42 U.S.C. 288). Therefore, such information must be submitted if an
application is to receive due consideration for an award. Lack of sufficient information may hinder
the ability of the PHS to review an application and to monitor the grantee’s performance.

SBIR: This request for SBIR information is issued pursuant to the authority contained in P.L. 112-
81 which authorizes the program through September 30, 2017. Government-wide SBIR policy is
provided by the Small Business Administration (SBA) through its SBIR Program Policy Directive.
Federal agencies with extramural research and development budgets over $100 million are required
to administer SBIR programs using an annual set-aside of 2.9% (FY 2015) for small companies to
conduct innovative research or research and development (R/R&D) that has potential for
commercialization and public benefit. Currently, 11 Federal agencies participate in the SBIR
program: the Departments of Health and Human Services (HHS), Agriculture (USDA), Commerce
(DOC), Defense (DOD), Education (ED), Energy (DOE), Homeland Security (DHS), and
Transportation (DOT); the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), the National Aeronautics and
Space Administration (NASA), and the National Science Foundation (NSF).

STTR: This request for STTR information is issued pursuant to the authority contained in P.L. 112-
81 which authorizes the program through September 30, 2017. Government-wide STTR policy is
provided by the SBA through its STTR Program Policy Directive.

Federal agencies with extramural R&D budgets over $1 billion annually are required to administer
STTR programs using a set-aside of 0.45% (FY 2015). Currently, five Federal agencies participate
in the STTR program: DoD, HHS, DOE, NASA, and NSF.

1.7.1 Collection of Personal Demographic Data

Federal agencies have a continuing commitment to monitor the operation of its review and award
processes to detect, and deal appropriately with, any instances of real or apparent inequities. In
addition, section 403 of the 2007 NIH Reform Act requires NIH to report to Congress specifically
on postdoctoral individuals supported on research grants, and section 489 of the PHS Act requires
NIH to perform a continuing assessment of research personnel needs. Personal demographic data
on PD/PIs and those with a postdoctoral role is vital to comply with these requirements.

NIH collects personal data through the eRA Commons Personal Profile. The data is provided one-
time by the individual through a secure, electronic system, is confidential, and is maintained under
the Privacy Act record system 09-25-0036, “Grants: IMPAC (Grant/Contract Information).” When
completing the data entry in the Commons Personal Profile, the individual is responsible for
providing true, accurate, and complete data. All analyses conducted on date of birth, citizenship,
gender, race, ethnicity, disability, and/or disadvantaged background data will report aggregate
statistical findings only and will not identify individuals. Declining to provide information does not
affect consideration of an application; however, for some programs (e.g., Ruth L. Kirschstein
National Research Service Awards and Research Career Development Awards) citizenship data
is required to determine eligibility.




The PHS also requests the last four digits of the Social Security Number (SSN) for accurate
identification of individuals and for management of PHS grant programs. Please be aware that no
individual will be denied any right, benefit, or privilege provided by law because of refusal to
disclose this portion of the SSN. The PHS requests the last four digits of the SSN under Section
301(a) and 487 of the PHS act as amended (42 U.S.C. 241a and U.S.C. 288).

1.8 Paperwork Burden

The PHS estimates that it will take approximately 22 hours to complete this application for a
regular research project grant. This estimate excludes time for development of the scientific plan.
Other items such as human subjects are cleared and accounted for separately and therefore are not
part of the time estimate. An agency may not conduct or sponsor the collection of information
unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number. Nor is a person required to respond to
requests for the collection of information without this control number. Send comments regarding
this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for
reducing this burden, to: NIH, Project Clearance Office, 6705 Rockledge Drive MSC 7974,
Bethesda, MD 20892-7974, ATT: PRA (0925-0001). Do not send applications to this address.




2. Process for Application Submission via
Grants.gov

Application submission through Grants.gov involves several steps. Some of the steps need only be
done one time. Others are ongoing steps that will be necessary for each application submission.
Before beginning the application process, you are encouraged to review Grants.gov and all the
resources available there.

2.1 Overview

All registrations require that applicants be issued a Dun and Bradstreet Universal Numbering
System (DUNS) number. After obtaining a DUNS number, applicants can begin both System for
Award Management (SAM) (formerly CCR) and eRA Commons registrations. The same DUNS
number must be used for all registrations and on the grant application itself.

Note that all applicant and grantee organizations must complete and maintain an active entity
registration in SAM which requires renewal at least annually. This requires that you review
and update the information at least annually after the initial registration, and more frequently if
required by changes in your information or another award term. The renewal process may require
as much time as the initial registration. SAM registration includes the assignment of a Commercial
and Government Entity (CAGE) Code for domestic organizations which have not already been
assigned a CAGE Code. Foreign organizations must obtain a NATO Commercial and Government
Entity (NCAGE) Code (in lieu of a CAGE Code) in order to register in SAM. Use the SAM.gov
"Manage Entity" function to maintain your entity registrations. See the Grants Registrations User
Guide at http://www.sam.gov for additional information.

For additional information regarding maintaining an active SAM registration, please see NIH
Guide Notice NOT-OD-11-004.

The following steps must be taken in order to submit a grant application through Grants.gov. Please
be sure to complete all steps to ensure that NIH receives the application in a timely manner.

1. Register your organization at Grants.gov. (This is a one-time only registration process for all
Federal agencies. However, an annual renewal of information provided to the System for
Award Management (SAM) is necessary to retain active Grants.gov credentials. If your
organization has already completed this step for any Federal agency submission, skip to step
#2. If your organization has not completed this step, see Section 2.2 for more details.)

2. Register your organization and Program Director/Principal Investigator (PD/PI) in the eRA
Commons. (This is a one-time only registration process. If your organization has already
completed this step, skip to step #3. If your organization has not completed this step, see
Section 2.2 for more details.)

3. Find a Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA) using the NIH Guide for Grants and
Contracts or Grants.gov’s “Search Grants” . (See Section 2.4 for more details.) A complete
list of SBIR/STTR FOAs is available on the NIH Small Business Funding Opportunities
Web site.
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4. Download the associated Application Package from Grants.gov. (Adobe Reader required for
download. See Section 2.3.1 for more details.)

5. Complete the appropriate application forms, including all text and PDF attachments. Upload
all attachments into the appropriate application form (See Section 2.6 for more details on the
requirements for text (PDF) attachments).

6. Review the completed application through your own organizational review process.

7. Coordinate with an Authorized Organization Representative (AOR) at the applicant
organization to submit the application by the date and time specified in the FOA. (Keep a
copy locally at the Applicant Organization/Institution.)

8. Receive the Grants.gov tracking number.

9. After successfully passing Grants.gov and agency validation, receive the agency tracking
number (accession number). Note: Any errors encountered at Grants.gov or eRA
Commons must be corrected in order to successfully complete your submission
successfully.

10. PD/PI and Signing Official (SO) must view the application in eRA Commons to ensure the
assembled application correctly reflects their submission. (See Section 2.11 for detailed
information.)

The following sections explain each step in more detail.

2.2 Registration Process

New/potential applicant organizations must have completed both Grants.gov and eRA Commons
registrations in order to submit an application. Grants.gov and eRA Commons are distinct, one-
time registrations which may be completed simultaneously. Each registration process is described
below.

2.2.1 Grants.gov Registration

Grants.gov requires a one-time registration by the applicant organization in order to submit
applications. Registration is not needed to download an application package or to prepare an
application for submission. PD/PIs do not have to individually register in Grants.gov unless they
also serve as the Authorized Organization Representative (AOR) for their institution/organization.
If an applicant organization has already completed Grants.gov registration for another Federal
agency, they can skip this section and focus on the eRA Commons registration steps noted below.
For those applicant organizations still needing to register with Grants.gov, registration information
can be found at the Grants.gov “Applicants” tab. While Grants.gov registration is a one-time only
registration process, it does involve several steps and will take some time. Applicant organizations
needing to complete this process are encouraged to start early allowing at least six (6) weeks to
complete all the steps before actually submitting an application through Grants.gov.

The AOR is an individual authorized to act for the applicant organization and to assume the
obligations imposed by the Federal laws, requirements, and conditions for a grant or grant
application, including the applicable Federal regulations. This individual has the authority to sign
grant applications and required certifications and/or assurances that are necessary to fulfill the
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requirements of the application process. Once this individual is registered, the organization can
then apply for any government funding opportunity listed in Grants.gov, including NIH and other
PHS agencies grants.

Questions regarding Grants.gov registration should be directed to the Grants.gov Contact Center at
telephone: 1-800-518-4726 or by e-mail at support@grants.gov. The Contact Center is available 24
hours a day, 7 days a week.

2.2.2 eRA Commons Registration

The applicant organization and ,all PD/PIs, all individuals with the role of project lead on multi-
project applications, and individuals with the role of Sponsor on individual fellowship applications
must also complete a one-time registration in the eRA Commons as a requirement for application
submission. Individuals in other roles do not need an eRA Commons ID for application submission.
However, if the application is funded, those individuals whose effort will be included in NIH
progress reports must also have an eRA Commons ID. Access to the Commons is vital for all steps
in the process after application submission. An organization, PD/PIs, and individuals in other roles
that require an ID must be registered in the Commons in order to have access to electronic
submission and retrieval of grant information, such as reviewing grant applications, institute/center
assignments, review outcomes, and Summary Statements (access varies by type of role).
Applicants must have an active DUNS number in order to complete the eRA Commons
registration. Organizations can register with the eRA Commons as they are working through their
SAM or Grants.gov registration. eRA Commons requires organizations to identify at least one
Signing Official (SO), also known as the Authorized Organization Representative (AOR in
Grants.gov), and at least one Program Director/Principal Investigator (PD/PI) account in order to
submit an application. Institutional/organizational officials are responsible for registering PD/Pls
and other individuals with a role in NIH progress reports in the eRA Commons. PD/PIs and other
individuals should work with their AOR/SO to determine their institutional/organizational process
for registration.

IMPORTANT: The eRA Commons registration process should be started at least six (6) weeks
prior to the submittal date of a Grants.gov submission. Failure to register in the Commons and to
include a valid PD/PI Commons ID in the credential field of the Senior/Key Person Profile Form
will prevent the successful submission of an electronic application to NIH.

2.2.2.1 Commons Registration for the Organization

Organizations may verify their current registration status by accessing the Commons Registered
Organizations link at https://public.era.nih.gov/chl/public/search/index.jsp.

To register an Organization in the eRA Commons:

1. Complete the online Institution Registration Form at:
https://public.era.nih.gov/commons/public/re gistration/registrationlnstructions.jsp

2. Print and fax the registration page

a. The Signing Official (SO) must sign, date and fax the registration to the number listed
on the form
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3. Signing Official must verify email address

a. Once the registration is submitted electronically, email verification is sent and the SO
must click the link to verify email

b. The above steps must be completed before NIH can process the registration
c. The SO will receive an “Approval” email from NIH

d. The “Approval” email contains a link to information that you must verify as correct
before the confirmation process is completed

4. Account Administrator (AA) receives user names and temporary passwords

a. After the completion of the confirmation, the SO and AA will receive two emails that
contain the user names and temporary password for the SO and AA accounts created
during the registration process

5. Log into Commons
a. The SO and AA log into Commons and administer additional accounts as needed
6. Affiliate your PD/Pls

a. Your Principal Investigators must work with your organization to be registered in
eRA Commons if they do not have an existing account. IF they have an account, you
must affiliate it with your organization. Verify that you've selected the correct PI
account!

For more information, see http://era.nih.gov/commons/fag commons.cfm#I12

This registration is independent of Grants.gov and may be done at any time.

Organizational data elements, such as Institutional Profile Number (IPF), Entity Identification
Number (e.g., 5555555555A5) and DUNS Number must be accurately identified. Note the DUNS
number must be included in the Institutional Profile for applications to be accepted. In
addition, the DUNS number in the Institutional Profile must match that entered in the SF424
(R&R) Form in Section 5, Applicant Information.

Since eRA has not required a DUNS number during eRA Commons registration, there are many
accounts that do not contain valid information in this field. Prior to submission, the AOR/SO should
verify that their organization’s eRA Commons profile contains the valid DUNS number that will be
used for the submission process. The SO has the ability to edit this field in the organization profile
in Commons.

To confirm that your organization has a DUNS number or to find out if the DUNS number you
have matches the one in Commons, access the List of Grantee Organizations Registered in eRA
Commons https://public.era.nih.gov/chl/public/search/index.jsp. This listing of grantee
organizations registered in Commons and their DUNS numbers can be accessed without logging
into Commons.

2.2.2.2 Commons Registration for the Program Directors/Principal Investigators
(PD/Pls)

Once the organization is registered in the Commons, individuals can then be registered.
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The individual(s) designated as PD/PI(s) on the application must be registered in the Commons. A
PD/PI must hold a PI account and be affiliated with the application organization. The initial
registration must be done by an Authorized Organization Representative (AOR) who has the
SO role in Commons, or other authorized accounts administrator at the organization. However,
after the initial registration process is complete, it becomes the responsibility of each individual to
maintain the information in his/her personal profile. If submitting an application reflecting Multiple
PD/PIs, the individual designated as the contact PI must be affiliated with the applicant
organization.

To register PD/PIs in the Commons, refer to (http://era.nih.gov/commons/user guide.cfim). For
applications reflecting Multiple PD/PIs, all such individuals must be assigned the PI role, even
those at organizations other than the applicant organization.

Once a PD/PI has received e-mail confirming his/her registration within the Commons, the PD/PI
must verify that all Personal Information located within the Personal Profile tab in the eRA
Commons System is accurate. The PD/PI should update, as needed, data elements such as first
name, middle initial, last name, prefix and/or suffix to PD/PI name (including all embedded
punctuation), e-mail, phone, fax, street address, city, state, country, zip and degrees earned. These
data must contain the most recent information in order for the application to be processed
accurately.

Both PD/PI and SO need separate accounts in Commons since each role enables different features
within eRA Commons. For example, an SO can Reject a submitted application to prevent it from
being sent on to agency staff. A PI has access to review outcome information (scores and summary
statement). If you are the SO for your organization as well as a PD/PI of the grant, you will need
two separate accounts with different user names — one with SO authority and one with PI authority.
When an organization is registered, an SO account is created. Log on to the account with the SO
authority role and create another account with PI authority.

For additional information on how to prepare for electronic submission, see:
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/ElectronicReceipt/preparing.htm.

2.2.2.3 Commons Registration for Other Individuals Participating in NIH
Progress Reports

Any individual with an Undergraduate, Graduate Student, and/or Postdoctoral Role who
participates in an NIH-funded project for at least one person month or more should also be
registered in the eRA Commons and should verify that all Personal Information located within the
Personal Profile tab in the eRA Commons System is accurate. This is required regardless of
whether salary is actually charged to the project. For graduate students supported on a particular
research grant, this could include project roles of graduate research assistant or graduate student.
For postdoctoral individuals supported on a particular research grant, this could include project
roles such as Postdoctoral Associate and other similar Postdoctoral positions.

When an individual is assigned the Undergraduate, Graduate Student, or Postdoctoral Role in the
Commons, responses to certain data items in the Personal Profile tab will be required to meet NIH
reporting requirements to Congress included in the NIH Reform Act, P.L. 109-482. The Commons
user name ID for those with an Undergraduate, Graduate Student, or Postdoctoral Role is not
required at the time of application submission, but will be required as part of the Research
Performance Progress Report (RPPR).
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For individuals at the postdoctoral level, this requirement is already in effect and progress reports
will not be accepted if the Commons ID is not provided. For individuals at the undergraduate and
graduate student levels, a Commons ID will be required effective with RPRRs submitted October
2014 and beyond. The Undergraduate and Graduate Student Roles have been added to the
Commons to accommodate this requirement; grantees are encouraged to begin registering these
individuals now.

See NOT-0OD-14-129 (http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-OD-14-129.html)

The Commons user name ID for other individuals is not required at the time of application
submission, but will be required as part of the Non-Competing Continuation Progress Report
(RPRR or PHS 2590).

For additional information on how to prepare for electronic submission, see:
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/ElectronicReceipt/preparing.htm.

The STTR applicant organization must officially affiliate the PD/PI with the small business
concern in the Commons if the PD/PI is not an employee of the small business concern.

Following are the steps to affiliate a PD/PI to the applicant organization/institution:

1. PD/PI gives commons user ID and e-mail address to the administrator of the applicant
organization/institution. (The e-mail address must be the one that is contained in the
Personal Profile for the PI.)

2. Administrator logs into the Commons. (The Administrator can be the Signing Official,
Administrative Official, or the Accounts Administrator.)

3. Administrator selects “Admin” tab and then “Accounts” tab and then “Manage Accounts”
tab.

4. Administrator searches for the individual they wish to affiliate making sure the “Search
outside your organization” bos is checked.

5. Administrator clicks the “Create Affiliation: action link for the identified individual

6. Administator provides the appropriate role and organization on the “Modify Account”
screen and clicks “Save.”

See also

eRA Create Accounts

2.2.3 SBA Company Registration

All applicants to the SBIR and STTR programs are required to register at the SBA Company
Registry prior to application submission and attach proof of registration. Completed registrations
will receive a unique SBC Control ID and .pdf file. If applicants have previously registered, they
are still required to attach proof of registration. The SBA Company Registry recommends
verification with SAM, but a SAM account is not required to complete the registration. In order to
be verified with SAM, your email address must match one of the contacts in SAM. If you are
unsure what is listed in SAM for your company, you may verify the information on the SAM site.
Confirmation of your company's DUNS is necessary to verify your email address in SAM.

Follow these steps listed below to register and attach proof of registration to your application:
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1. Navigate to the SBA Company Registry.

2. If you are a previous SBIR/STTR awardee from any agency, search for your small business
by Company Name, EIN/Tax ID, DUNS, or Existing SBIR/STTR Contract/Grant Number
in the search fields provided. Identify your company and click “Proceed to Registration”.

3. If you are a first time applicant, click the New to the SBIR Program? link on lower right of
registry screen.

4. Fill out the required information on the “Basic Information” and “Eligibility Statement”
screens.

5. Press “Complete Registration” on the lower right of the “Eligibility Statement” screen and
follow all instructions.

6. Download and save your SBA registry PDF locally. The name will be in the format of
SBC 123456789.pdf, where SBC 123456789 (9 digit number) is your firm’s SBC Control
ID. DO NOT CHANGE OR ALTER THE FILE NAME. Changing the file name may
cause delays in the processing of your application.

7. When you are completing the application package, attach this SBA registry PDF as a
separate file by clicking Add Attachments located to the right of Other Attachments on the
“Research and Related Other Project Information” form.

For questions and for technical assistance concerning the SBA Company Registry, please
contact the SBA at http://sbir.gov/feedback?type=reg.

SBA SBIR Website helpdesk: Telephone (571) 306-5201 M-F 9am-5pm (EST)

SBIR and STTR grant applications that do not have the SBA registry PDF uploaded to the correct
section with the correct file title (both listed above) will receive an e-submission Warning message
from eRA Commons upon grant submission. Y our grant submission can proceed with this Warning.

2.3 Software Requirements

2.3.1 Adobe Reader

In order to access, complete and submit applications using Grants.gov’s downloadable forms,
applicants will need to download and install a compatible version of the Adobe Reader available at
the Grants.gov website http:/www.grants.gov/web/grants/support/technical-
support/software/adobe-reader-compatibility.html.

For minimum system requirements and download instructions, please see the Grants.gov User
Guide

2.3.2 Creating PDFs for Text Attachments

NIH and other PHS agencies require all text attachments to the SF424 (R&R) application forms to
be submitted as PDF files.

Applicants should prepare text attachments using any word processing program (following the
format requirements in Section 2.6) and then convert those files to PDF before attaching the files to
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the appropriate form in the application package. (The PDF format is used to preserve document
formatting.) Save all files with descriptive file names of 50 characters or less. Do not use the
ampersand (&) character in file names. Use one space, (not two or more) between words or
characters. Just like letters, a space counts as one character.

Some type of PDF-creation software is necessary to create the PDF. (The free Adobe Reader will
not create a PDF.) To assist applicants searching for free PDF-creation software, Grants.gov has
published a list of available tools and software, see Grants.gov’s Download Software page at
http://www.grants.gov/web/grants/support/technical-support/software/pdf-conversion-
software.html.

Note that all PDF attachments must be submitted as individual files. Although some software
packages allow bundling of multiple PDFs into a single file, eRA systems cannot support
“Bundling” or “Portfolio” features at this time. Use of these features may result in delays in the
review of an application or an application not being reviewed.

It is recommended that, as much as possible, applicants avoid scanning text documents to produce
the required PDFs. Instead, NIH recommends producing the documents electronically using text or
word-processing software and then converting documents to PDF. Scanning paper documents,
without the proper Optical Character Recognition (OCR) process, will hamper automated
processing of your application for NIH analysis and reporting.

See additional information at NIH PDF Guidelines
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/ElectronicReceipt/pdf guidelines.htm

DISCLAIMER: References to software packages or Internet services neither constitute nor
should be inferred to be an endorsement or recommendation of any product, service, or enterprise
by the NIH or other PHS agencies, any other agency of the United States Government, or any
employee of the United States Government. No warranties are stated or implied.

2.4 Funding Opportunities

Grants for health-related research and research training projects or activities make up the largest
category of funding provided by the NIH Institutes/Centers (ICs) and other non-NIH agencies.
Most applications for support are unsolicited and originate with individual investigators who
develop proposed plans for research or research training within an area that is relevant to the NIH.
Research project grants are awarded to organizations/institutions on behalf of PD/PIs to facilitate
the pursuit of a scientific objective when the idea for the research is initiated by the investigator. If
the funding agency anticipates substantial program involvement during the conduct of the research,
a cooperative agreement will be awarded, rather than a grant. The NIH typically awards grants
and cooperative agreements for terms ranging from one to five years. Organizational/institutional
sponsorship assures that the awardee organization will provide the facilities and the financial
stability necessary to conduct the research, and be accountable for the funds. For a list and brief
description of grant activity codes, see Supplemental Instructions Part III: Policies, Assurances,
Definitions, and Other Information.
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2.4.1 NIH Guide for Grants and Contracts

The NIH Guide for Grants and Contracts (http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide), a weekly electronic
publication, contains announcements about funding opportunities, such as Requests for
Applications (RFAs) and Program Announcements (PAs), including Parent Announcements, from
NIH and other PHS agencies. The NIH Guide also contains vital information about policies and
procedures. To subscribe to the NIH Guide, visit http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/listserv.htm.

2.4.2 Funding Opportunity Announcements

To hasten the development of a program or to stimulate submission of applications in an area of
high priority or special concern, an awarding component will encourage applications through the
issuance of a PA to describe new, continuing, or expanded program interests, or issuance of an
RFA inviting applications in a well-defined scientific area to accomplish a scientific purpose.

Definitions are as follows:

Parent Announcements: Electronic grant applications must be submitted in response to a Funding
Opportunity Announcement (FOA). For applicants who wish to submit what were formerly termed
“investigator-initiated” or “unsolicited” applications, NIH and other PHS agencies have developed
Parent Announcements. Responding to such an omnibus or umbrella Parent FOA ensures that the
correct application package is used and enables NIH to receive the application from Grants.gov.
Additional information about, as well as links to published Parent Announcements, can be found at:_
http://grants.nih. gov/grants/guide/parent announcements.htm.

Program Announcement (PA): A formal statement about a new or ongoing extramural activity or
program. It may serve as a reminder of continuing interest in a research area, describe
modifications in an activity or program, and/or invite applications for grant support. Most
applications in response to PAs may be submitted to a standing submission date and are reviewed
with all other applications received at that time. NIH may also make funds available through PARs
(Program Announcements with special receipt, referral, and/or review considerations) and PASs
(Program Announcements with set-aside funds).

Request for Applications (RFA): A formal statement that solicits grant or cooperative agreement
applications in a well-defined scientific area to accomplish specific program objectives. An RFA
indicates the estimated amount of funds set aside for the competition, the estimated number of
awards to be made, and the application submission date(s). Applications submitted in response to
an RFA are usually reviewed by a Scientific Review Group (SRG) specially convened by the
awarding component that issued the RFA.

PAs (including Parent Announcements) and RFAs are published in the NIH Guide for Grants and
Contracts (http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide), the Federal Register
(http://www.gpoaccess.gov/nara/index.html), and on Grants.gov under Grants.gov under Search
Grants (http:/www.grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html). Read the announcement carefully
for special instructions. The instructions in the announcement may differ from these general
instructions, and the instructions in the announcement always supersede these general instructions.
Each announcement published in the NIH Guide for Grants and Contracts, the Federal Register,
Grants.gov Search Grants, or other public document contains contact information in addition to
information specific to the announcement.
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While individual announcements will continue to carry an announcement number reference to
“PA” or “RFA”, all announcements are “Funding Opportunity Announcements (FOAs).” This
general term will be used to reference any type of funding announcement. NIH will continue to use
the PA and RFA references in the actual announcement number to distinguish between the various
types of announcements.

In reading any FOA in the NIH Guide for Grants and Contracts:

o A “Posted Date” refers to the date the FOA is posted on Grants.gov. An applicant can
download the application package on that date and begin filling it out. However, the
applicant has to wait until the FOA’s “open date” to submit the application.

« An application can be submitted anytime between the “open date” and the “application due
date(s)” noted for AIDS and non-AIDS applications. (Standard dates may apply; check
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/submissionschedule.htm for details.)

o When you download an application package from Grants.gov, the “expiration date” is pre-
populated. Do not go strictly by this date since it may not apply to your particular situation;
for instance, it may reflect the submission date for AIDS applications and you may be
submitting a non-AIDS application that is due earlier. In this case, the pre-populated date
has no bearing on your application and you should not be concerned by it.

All applications submitted to the NIH must be submitted in response to an FOA published in the
NIH Guide for Grants and Contracts.

2.4.3 Finding a Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA) for
Grants.gov Submission

Implementation of the SF424 (R&R) application and electronic submission through Grants.gov will
be announced through specific FOAs posted in the NIH Guide for Grants and Contracts and on
Grants.gov under “Search Grants” (a.k.a. “Search”) and “Apply for Grants” (a.k.a. “Apply”).
From the “Applicants” section of the Grants.gov home page, select “Apply for Grants” and follow
the steps provided. FOAs posted in Grants.gov “Search” reflect those the agency is prepared to
receive through electronic Grants.gov submission. Applicants are encouraged to read each FOA
carefully for specific guidance on the use of Grants.gov submission.

There are several ways a prospective applicant can find a FOA on Grants.gov.
Using the NIH Guide for Grants and Contracts

FOAs in the NIH Guide for Grants and Contracts that reference electronic submission via
Grants.gov include a link from the FOA directly to the Grants.gov site where you can download
the specific application package. The Apply for Grants Electronically button is found in the NITH
Guide FOA directly under the Required Application Instructions section. This link is only provided
in those announcements involving electronic submission through Grants.gov.

Using “Search” Grants

Grants.gov Search Grants provides general search capabilities. From the “Search Grants” page,
you will find various options for: providing search criteria (e.g., keyword, Funding Opportunity
Number, status, etc.) and identifying FOAs of interest.
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Once you find an opportunity for which you wish to apply, you may initiate the application
download process from the Search page by selecting the FOA then selecting the “Application
Package” tab and using the download link.

Using “Apply for Grants”

If you know the specific Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA) number, from the Grants.gov
homepage, select “Applicants” then “Apply for Grants” and follow the steps provided. “Step 1”
allows you to download an application package by inserting an FOA number. If you do not know
the specific FOA Number you may use Search Grants to find it.

CONTACT US A SCRIPTIONS | REGISTER | LOGN

L=\ =lei Wl Grant Opportunities |Z| Enter Keyword [ce]
(= GRANTS.GOV™

FIND. APRLY EED.

HOME ABOUT s APPLICANTS ~ G 0 0 FORMS OUTREACH SUPPORT

GRANTS.GOV ) Applicants } Download Application Package
DOWNLOAD APPLICATION PACKAGE

& PLEASE NOTE: You will need to download and install Adobe Reader prior to downloading an Application Package.

To download an application package, enter the appropriate CFDA Humber OR Funding Opportunity Humber and click the "Download Package” button

CFDA Number: (#HE 1)
Funding Opportunity Number: (Can contain only letters, numbers and dashes)
Funding Opportunity Competition 1D: (Can contain only letters, numbers and dashes)

Download Package

I you do not remember the Funding Opportunity Number for the grant opportunity, return to the Find Grant Opportunities section to locate the grant oppartunity and then return to
this screen to enter the number

CONNECT: [ Twitter [ 8 XML Extract [B) Blogger GRANT! v

200 Independence Avenue, * HHH Building
lington, DC 20201
COMMUNITY: USA.gov | Whitehouse.gov | USASpending.go A gov | FSR AM.gov | DUNS Request 1-80 support@agrants.gov

HEALTH & HUMAN VI S.gov | FOIA | No Fear Act | Acc

Click the corresponding download link to access the actual application form pages and instruction
material. If more than one application package is listed, use the Competition ID and Competition
Title to determine the appropriate package to download. The following screens appear:
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Download Opportunity Instructions and Application. You have chosen to
download the application for the following opportunity:

CFDA Number:

Opening Date:

Opportunity Number:
Competition 1D:
Competition Title:
Agency:

Closing Date:

PA-13-302: Research Project Grant (Farent RD1)
FORME-C

Forms-C

National Institutes of Health

- 08/07/2012

02v0T/2018

To download an application, you will nesd to submit an ema
event this opportunity is changed and republished on Gran

ress =0 that you can be notified of any changes to the application before the closing date. Your e-mail address will sllow us to e-mail you in the
jov before its closing date.

Email:

Confirm Email:

T No. | do not wish to provide my email

submit

INTS | APPLICANTS ~  GR.
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DOWNLOAD APPLICATION PACKAGE
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Download Oppartunity Instructions
download the application for the
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1. Downlozd Application Ins
2. Download Application Fackage
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Competition Title:
Agenay:
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Closing Date:

future changes to this opportunity. |f you would like to receive notifications pleass click here.
4 links below. While the instructions or application fik:
the application onoe you save them to your computer.

PA-13-302; Ressarch Project Grant (Parent RO1)
FORME-C

Forms-C

National Institutes of Health

08/07/2013

DBI0T/2018
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ve the files to your computer for future reference and

To access the instructions, click Download Application Instructions. For NIH opportunities and
other PHS agencies using this Application Guide, this action will download a document containing
a link to the NIH website where the most current set of application instructions is available
(http://grants.nih. gov/grants/funding/424/index.htm). Applicants are encouraged to check this site

regularly for the most current version.

To access the form pages, click Download Application Package. Section 2.5 provides specific
information regarding the forms for an Application Package. Section 3 provides additional
instructions for properly using a package.

On the Download Opportunity Instructions and Applications screen you will be given an
opportunity to provide an e-mail address if you would like to be notified of any changes to this
particular opportunity. Applicants to NIH and other PHS agencies are strongly encouraged to
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complete this information. The agency can then use it to provide additional information to
prospective applicants.

Note: The forms may or may not show a CFDA number and the CFDA field is not editable. Do not
be concerned. The CFDA number is not used for assignment of the application. Be assured the
correct CFDA number will be assigned to the record once the appropriate IC assignment
has been made.

2.5 Forms for an Application to NIH or Other PHS Agencies

An application to NIH or other PHS agencies combines forms from the SF424 (R&R) with other
agency-specific forms known as “PHS 398.” All forms are listed in the table below.

SBIR/STTR applicants will also complete the "SBIR/STTR Information form."

Table 2.5-1. Forms for an NIH or Other PHS Agency Application

DOCUMENT REQUIRED | OPTIONAL & INSTRUCTIONS
SF424 (R&R) X Section 4.2
Project/Performance Site Locations X Section 4.3
SF424 (R&R) Other Project Information X Section 4.4
SF424 (R&R) Senior/ Key Person Profile Expanded X Section 4.5
SF424 (R&R) Budget X Section 4.7

SF424 (R&R) Subaward Budget Attachment Form

X Section 4.8
(Use when required or allowed by the FOA)
SBIR/STTR Information X Section 4.9
PHS 398 Cover Page Supplement X Section 5.3
PHS 398 Research Plan X Section 5.5
Planned Enroliment Report X Section 5.8
PHS 398 Cumulative Inclusion Enrollment Report X Section 5.8.2

All required and optional forms for electronic submission listed above are available through Grants.gov and
should be downloaded from the FOA being applied to. Do not use any forms or format pages from other




sources except for the additional format pages provided on the SF424 (R&R) website. Forms from other
sources may include extraneous headers/footers or other information that could interfere with the electronic
application process

2.6 Format Specifications for Text (PDF) Attachments

Designed to maximize system-enforced validations, multiple separate attachments are required for
a complete application. When the application is received by the agency, all submitted forms and all
separate attachments are combined into a single document that is used by peer reviewers and
agency staff.

NIH and other PHS agencies require all text attachments to the Adobe application forms be
submitted as PDFs and that all text attachments conform to the agency-specific formatting
requirements noted below. Failure to follow these requirements may lead to rejection of the
application during agency validation or delay in the review process. (See Section 2.3.2 for more
information on creating PDFs.)

Text attachments should be generated using word processing software and then converted to PDF
using PDF generating software. Avoid scanning text attachments to convert to PDF since that
causes problems for the agency handling the application. Additional tips for creating PDF files can
be found at http://grants.nih.gov/grants/ElectronicReceipt/pdf guidelines.htm.

When attaching a PDF document to the actual forms, please note you are attaching an actual
document, not just pointing to the location of an externally stored document. Therefore, if you
revise the document after it has been attached, you must delete the previous attachment and then
reattach the revised document to the application form. Use the View Attachment button to
determine if the correct version has been attached.

File Name

Save all files with descriptive file names of 50 characters or less. Do not use the ampersand (&)
character in file names. Use one space, (not two or more) between words or characters. Just like
letters, a space counts as one character.

Font

Prepare the application using Arial, Helvetica, Palatino Linotype, or Georgia typeface in black font
color. After text attachments are converted to PDF, font size in each final PDF document must be
at least 11 points (or larger). (A Symbol font may be used to insert Greek letters or special
characters; the font size requirement still applies.)

Since some PDF converters may reduce font sizes, it is important to confirm that type density in
each final PDF document, including both characters and spaces, is no more than 15
characters+spaces per linear inch and no more than six lines per vertical inch.

Paper Size and Page Margins
Final PDF documents should be formatted to be no larger than standard paper size (8 %" x 11).

The final PDF document should have at least one-half inch margins (top, bottom, left, and right) for
all pages. No information should appear in the margins, including the PI’s name and page numbers.

Page Formatting
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Since a number of reviewers will be reviewing applications as an electronic document and not a
paper version, applicants are strongly encouraged to use only a standard, single-column format for
the text. Avoid using a two-column format since it can cause difficulties when reviewing the
document electronically.

Do not include any information in a header or footer of the attachments. A header will be system-
generated that references the name of the PD/PI. Page numbers for the footer will be system-
generated in the complete application, with all pages sequentially numbered.

Figures, Graphs, Diagrams, Charts, Tables, Figure Legends, and Footnotes

You may use a smaller type size but it must be in a black font color, readily legible, and follow the
font typeface requirement. Color can be used in figures; however, all text must be in a black font
color, clear and legible.

Grantsmanship
Use English and avoid jargon.

If terms are not universally known, spell out the term the first time it is used and note the
appropriate abbreviation in parentheses. The abbreviation may be used thereafter.

Page Limits

Although many of the sections of this application are separate text (PDF) attachments, page limits
referenced in these instructions and/or funding opportunity announcements must still be followed.
Agency validations will include many checks for page limits. Some accommodation will be made
for sections that when combined must fit within a specified limitation. Note that while these
computer validations will help minimize incomplete and/or non-compliant applications, they may
not address all page limit requirements for a specific FOA and do not replace the validations
conducted by NIH staff. Applications found not to comply with the requirements may lead to
rejection of the application during agency validation or delay in the review process.

All applications for NIH and other PHS agency funding must be self-contained within specified
page limits. Unless otherwise specified in an NIH solicitation, Internet Web site addresses (URLs)
may not be used to provide information necessary to the review because reviewers are under no
obligation to view the Internet sites. Moreover, reviewers are cautioned that they should not
directly access an Internet site as it could compromise their anonymity.

Observe the page number limits given in Table 2.6-1. Only when specifically allowed in an FOA
will the PHS accept applications that exceed the page number limitations noted in the Table.
However, specific page number limits may still apply to each subproject. For information
pertaining to page number limits for such projects, contact the awarding component to which the
application may be assigned. (See Table 1.4-1. Agency Contact Table.) The page number
limitations may also be different for other specialized grant applications.

Applicants are prohibited from using the Appendix to circumvent page limitations in any section of
the application for which a page limit applies. For additional information regarding Appendix
material and page limits, please refer to the NIH Guide Notice NOT-OD-11-080.

Table 2.6-1. Page Limits
Please visit http://grants.nih.gov/grants/forms_page_limits.htm for a more detailed Table of Page Limits.



http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-OD-11-080.html
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/forms_page_limits.htm

SECTION OF APPLICATION

Also refer to the relevant section of the application instructions PAGE LIMITS*
and the FOA.

Introduction to Resubmission and Revision Applications 1 page

Specific Aims 1 page

Phase | SBIR/STTR: 6 pages

Research Strategy (ltem of Research Plan) Phase Il and Phase 1IB SBIR/STTR: 12
pages

Fast-Track SBIR/STTR: 12 pages

5 pages per person
Biographical Sketches

Commercialization Plans for Phase |l, Phase 1IB Competing
Renewals, and Fast-Track Applications

12 pages

Phase | SBIR/STTR: Not permitted unless

A di
Appendix specifically requested by NIH.
FOAs (PAs and RFAs) Follow FOA Instructions

* FOA instructions always supersede these instructions.

Applicants are prohibited from using the Appendix to circumvent page limitations in any section of the
application for which a page limit applies. For additional information regarding Appendix material and page
limits, please refer to the NIH Guide Notice NOT-OD-11-080, http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-
files/NOT-OD-11-080.html.

2.7 "Resubmission" Applications

The National Institutes of Health (NIH) and the Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality
(AHRQ) have updated their policies for application submission. Following an unsuccessful
resubmission (A1) application, applicants may submit the same idea as a new (A0) application for
any due date in the future that is appropriate for the grant mechanism and Funding Opportunity
Announcement. The policy does not preclude submission of a new (A0) application following an
unsuccessful new (A0) application, without an intervening resubmission (A1) application. The NIH
and AHRQ will not assess the similarity of the science in the new (A0) application to any
previously reviewed submission when accepting an application for review (see NOT-OD-14-074).

The updated policy applies to major types of applications and activity codes, including, the NIH
Small Business Innovation Research (SBIR) and Small Business Technology Transfer (STTR)
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programs, Eligibility criteria and any other restrictions or requirements in the Funding Opportunity
Announcement (FOA) prevail. For example, an SBIR/STTR application must meet the eligibility
requirements for each application submission. An application that was not accepted previously for
being too similar to a resubmission application that had been reviewed previously can be submitted
as a new application.

FAQs on the Resubmission Policy as it pertains to SBIR/STTR applications can be found here:
http://sbir.nih.gov/fags#inside CollapseNineteen

NIH's policy for accepting overlapping applications remains in effect (see NOT-OD-09-100). The
NIH will not accept duplicate or highly overlapping applications under review at the same time.
This means that the NIH will not accept:

« anew (A0) application that is submitted before issuance of the summary statement from the
review of an overlapping resubmission (A1) application.

o aresubmission (A1) application that is submitted before issuance of the summary statement
from the review of the previous new (A0) application.

« an application that has substantial overlap with another application pending appeal of initial
peer review (see NOT-OD-11-101).

The NIH time limit for accepting resubmission (A1) applications remains in effect (see NOT-OD-
12-128 and NOT-OD-10-140). The NIH will not accept a resubmission (A1) application that is
submitted later than 37 months after submission of the new (A0) application that it follows.

NIH has established policies for application resubmissions of certain categories. See Resubmission
of Unpaid RFA Applications and Resubmission of Applications with a Changed Grant Activity
Code in Part II1, 1.2.

There are four requirements for a Resubmission application:

e The Summary Statement from the previous new application that it follows must be available
in the eRA Commons (http://commons.era.nih.gov/commons).

« The PD/PI(s) must make significant changes to the application, compared to the new
application that it follows.

o An Introduction must be included that summarizes the substantial additions, deletions, and
changes to the application. The Introduction must also include a response to the issues and
criticism raised in the Summary Statement. The Introduction is separate from the Cover
Letter. Use Item 2.1 Introduction of the PHS 398 Research Plan Form to provide this
information. The page limit for the Introduction may not exceed one page unless indicated
otherwise. Please refer to the relevant section of the application instructions and the FOA.

Acceptance of a resubmission application will not automatically withdraw the prior version. eRA
keeps all versions (e.g., 01, A1) of a grant application active and provides an internal Multiple
Active Applications (MAA) flag for each application in an active cluster. The cluster allows
applicants to identify quickly all versions of one application. If any version in a cluster is awarded,
all other applications within the cluster will be automatically withdrawn without any additional
action by applicants or staff.

Part I: Instructions for Preparing and Submitting an Application
[-39


http://sbir.nih.gov/faqs#insideCollapseNineteen
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-OD-09-100.html
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-OD-11-101.html
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-OD-12-128.html
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-OD-12-128.html
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-OD-10-140.html
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/424/SupplementalInstructions.pdf#1_2_resubmission_of_unfunded_rfa
http://commons.era.nih.gov/commons

2.8 "Revision" Application

A Revision application (formerly called a competing supplement) may be submitted to request
support for a significant expansion of a project’s scope or research protocol. Applications for
revisions are not appropriate when the sole purpose is to restore awards to the full SRG-
recommended level if they were administratively reduced by the funding agency. A revision
application should not be submitted until after the original application has been awarded and must
not extend beyond the term of the current award period.

Provide a one-page “Introduction” that describes the nature of the supplement and how it will
influence the specific aims, research design, and methods of the current grant. Use Introduction to
application, of the PHS 398 Research Plan form to provide this information. The body of the
application should contain sufficient information from the original grant application to allow
evaluation of the proposed supplement in relation to the goals of the original application. Note that
all revision applications must be submitted by the same PD/PI (or Contact PD/PI for multi-PI
grants) as listed on the current award and applicants must use the same budget format (i.e. R&R
Budget Form ) as the current award. Also, any budgetary changes for the remainder of the project
period of the current grant should be discussed in the Budget Justification.

If the revision application relates to a specific line of investigation presented in the original
application that was not recommended for approval by the SRG, then the applicant must respond to
the criticisms in the prior Summary Statement, and substantial revisions must be clearly evident
and summarized in the “Introduction.”

Administrative Supplements

An administrative supplement is a noncompeting award that provides additional funding to a
currently funded grant to meet increased costs that are within the scope of the approved project,
but that were unforeseen when the new or competing renewal application was submitted. If you
are considering requesting administrative supplement funding, you must consult in advance with
your designated Grants Management Officer and Program Official. It is important to submit a
request for supplemental funding before the awarded grant expires. NIH now publishes all
administrative supplement programs as FOAs, which include specific programs such as the
Research Supplements to Promote Diversity, and a general FOA for requests that do not fall under
a specific program. Administrative Supplement requests may now be submitted in response to an
FOA through either the eRA Commons or Grants.gov, as described in NOT-OD-12-024, or through
the existing, paper-based process. Each FOA will link to an application package to use with the
submission. It is important to note that since the applications for administrative supplements are
non-competing, a cover letter attachment is not allowed to be included in an application submitted
through eRA Commons or Grants.gov and will generate an error message if included. If you submit
a request in writing, you must submit to the IC which awarded the original funded grant (not to the
Division of Receipt and Referral, Center for Scientific Review). For additional information, see
NIH Guide Notice NOT-OD-12-043. The request must be signed by the authorized Business
Official and describe the need for additional funding and the categorical costs. The justification
should also point out what will NOT be able to be accomplished if such a request is denied.
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2.9 Similar, Essentially Identical, or Identical Applications

Submissions of identical applications to one or more components of the PHS are not
allowed.

Simultaneous submission of identical applications to one or more components of the PHS are not
allowed, and the NIH will not accept similar grant applications with essentially the same research
focus from the same applicant organization for the same receipt date. This includes derivative or
multiple applications that propose to develop a single product, process or service that, with non-
substantive modifications, can be applied to a variety of purposes. Likewise, identical or
essentially identical grant applications submitted by different applicant organizations will not be
accepted for the same receipt date. Applicant organizations should ascertain and assure that the
materials they are submitting on behalf of the principal investigator are the original work of the
principal investigator and have not been used elsewhere in the preparation and submission of a
similar grant application. Applications to the NIH are grouped by scientific discipline for review
by individual Scientific Review Groups and not by disease or disease state. The reviewers can thus
easily identify multiple grant applications for essentially the same project. In these cases,
application processing may be delayed or the application(s) may not be reviewed.

Essentially identical applications will not be reviewed except for: 1) individuals submitting an
application for an Independent Scientist Award (K02) proposing essentially identical research in an
application for an individual research project; 2) individuals submitting an individual research
project identical to a subproject that is part of a program project or center grant application; 3)
submissions of applications previously submitted to an RFA that were not paid or resubmissions of
investigator-initiated applications originally submitted to an RFA (see Grants Policy Statement
section 2.3.7.3); and 4) resubmissions of applications with a changed grant activity code.

2.10 Submitting your Application Via Grants.gov

The Authorized Organization Representatives (AORs) registered in Grants.gov are the only
official with the authority to actually submit applications through Grants.gov. Therefore, PD/Pls
will need to work closely with their AOR(s) to determine that all the necessary steps have been
accomplished prior to submitting an application. This includes any internal review process required
by the applicant organization.

Before starting the final submission step, applicants are encouraged to save a copy of the final
application locally. Once you have properly completed all required documents and attached any
required or optional documentation, click on the Check Package for Errors button to ensure that
you have successfully completed all Grants.gov required data fields. If any of the required fields
are not completed you will receive an error notice which will indicate where revision is needed
within your package. Correct any errors or if none are found, save the application package. Note
that the Check Package for Errors button only checks a subset of Grants.gov application checks
and does not guarantee that your application will pass subsequent Grants.gov and agency business
rule checks done after submission. Only after the package has been saved with no errors will the
Save & Submit button become active. Clicking the Save & Submit button will begin the
application submission process. The application package must then be saved once more before the




submission process begins. Only an AOR will be able to perform the submit action, and they will
be taken to the applicant login page to enter the Grants.gov username and password that was
established in the Register with Grants.gov process (if not connected to the internet you will be
instructed to do so).

Once logged in, the application package will be automatically uploaded to Grants.gov. A
confirmation screen will appear once the upload is complete and a Grants.gov Tracking Number
will be provided on this screen. Applicants should record this number so that they may refer to it
should they need to contact Grants.gov Contact Center or the eRA Commons Help Desk.

For additional information, see http://www.grants.gov/applicants/apply for grants.jsp.

Applicants should be aware that on-time submission means that an application is submitted error
free (of both Grants.gov and eRA Commons errors) before 5 p.m. on the receipt date, local time of
the applicant organization. Applicants are encouraged to submit their applications to Grants.gov
several days early to ensure enough time to correct any errors before the deadline.

2.11 After you Submit your Application via Grants.gov

Grants.gov’s Track My Application feature for Applicants
(http://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/track-my-application.html) provides basic status
information for a specified Grants.gov Tracking Number. The Authorized Organization
Representative (AOR) can also login to Grants.gov with their username and password to obtain a
more detailed status of an application by using the Check My Application Status feature.

Once an application has been submitted via Grants.gov, several e-mails are sent to the email
address on file with Grants.gov for the AOR (known at NIH/in eRA Commons as the Signing
Official [SO]) who submitted the application. Each email notification will reference a Grants.gov
tracking number that is assigned to the submission:

1. Submission Receipt: An e-mail is sent indicating your application has been received by
Grants.gov and is currently being validated.

2. Submission Validation Receipt: An e-mail is sent indicating your application has been
received and validated by Grants.gov and is being prepared for Grantor agency retrieval.

3. Grantor Agency Retrieval Receipt: An e-mail is sent indicating your application has been
retrieved by the Grantor agency.

4. Agency Tracking Number Assignment for Application: An e-mail is sent indicating your
application has been assigned an Agency Tracking Number. In Grants.gov, a status of
Agency Tracking Number Assigned also indicates that NIH has processed the application
without identifying any errors and an assembled application image is available in eRA
Commons for viewing.

If the AOR/SO has not received a confirmation message from Grants.gov within 48 hours of
submission, please contact:

Grants.gov Contact Center
Telephone: 1-800-518-4726
E-mail: support(@grants.gov
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At that point, the application will be scheduled for download into the eRA system for agency
validation. It is imperative that the e-mail address provided in block 14 for the PD/PI and 19 for the
AOR/SO on the SF424 (R&R) form be current and accurate. Once agency validation is completed,
an agency notification (not Grants.gov) will be e-mailed to the PD/PI, AOR/SO, and the Applicant
Contact e-mail (if provided) named in the application.

This e-mail notification will inform the PD/PI, AOR/SO, and the Applicant Contact (if named) that
the application has been received and processed by the agency and will indicate whether any
errors or warnings resulted during the validation process. The PD/PI, AOR/SO, and the Applicant
Contact will be invited to log on the eRA Commons to view the assembled application or review
the list of warnings/errors that were encountered during the validation process. SOs for the
applicant organization, the PD/PI for the application and any Assistants that have been delegated in
eRA Commons to view the PD/PIs status information will have access to the submission results in
eRA Commons.

If there were no validation errors, this e-mail notification will also inform the PD/PI, AOR/SO,
and the Applicant Contact of an agency accession number (e.g., AN654321), which represents the
“agency tracking number.” The Grants.gov system will indicate that the agency tracking number
has been assigned, and will reflect both numbers. In subsequent interaction with the eRA
Commons, however, it is the agency accession number that will be used to refer to the application,
not the Grants.gov tracking number.

The eRA system will make every effort to send an e-mail to the PD/PI, AOR/SO, and the
Applicant Contact summarizing download and validation results. Since e-mail can be unreliable,
applicants are responsible for checking on their application status in the Commons.
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Once an application package has been successfully submitted through Grants.gov, any
encountered errors have been corrected by the applicant, and an application image has
been assembled by the eRA Commons, PD/PIs and AORs/SOs will have two business days
(Monday — Friday, excluding Federal holidays) to check the assembled application before it
automatically moves forward to NIH staff for further processing and consideration. Once
the application has moved forward, no additional changes to the application will be
accepted through Grants.gov or eRA Commons. This window is known as the application
viewing window.

Within the viewing window, SOs have the authority to reject an application to stop it from
completing the submission process. After an application is rejected, a changed/corrected
application can be submitted to address warnings or other issues if it is still before the
submission deadline. However, changed/corrected applications overwrite previous
submissions and if submitted after the submission deadline will be subject to the NIH Late
Policy and may not be accepted.

Remember, warnings do not stop further application processing. If an application
submission results in warnings (but not errors), the application will automatically move
forward after the application viewing window if no action is taken. Some warnings may
need to be addressed later in the process.

It is your responsibility to view the entire assembled application in eRA Commons and
notify the eRA Commons Help Desk within this window if the assembled application does
not correctly reflect the information submitted to Grants.gov (e.g., submitted information
is missing in image, graph/chart appears upside-down). The eRA Commons Help Desk will
provide guidance on appropriate corrective actions.

If you encounter a system issue beyond your control that threatens your ability to complete
the submission process on-time, you must follow the Guidelines for Applicants
Experiencing System Issues.

Only the eRA Help Desk can confirm whether a system issue has taken place and provide
instructions on how to resolve the issue. Applications affected by confirmed system issues
will not be considered late as long as the applicant works diligently with the eRA Help
Desk on a resolution. If the application needs to be Rejected and resubmitted, applicants
should follow the instructions for correcting errors in Section 2.12, including the
requirement for cover letters on late applications.

PD/PIs should work with their AOR/SO to determine when the “Reject” feature is
appropriate.

To view the assembled application the AOR/SO should:

1. Login to the eRA Commons (https://commons.era.nih.gov/commons/) with your Signing
Official (SO) account.

2. Click the Status tab on the Commons menu bar.

3. Click Recent/Pending eSubmissions on the left-hand side of the screen.

4. Search for your application by date received, Grants.gov tracking number, or accession
number, to view a hit list of available applications.
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5. When you find the appropriate application, click the accession number in the Application
ID column to view the Status Information screen.

6. Click e-Application from the Other Relevant Documents section to view the assembled
application.

Note: The SO can Reject the application by clicking on the Reject eApplication hypertext
link from the Action column of the search hit list.

To view the assembled application the PD/PI should:

1. Login to the eRA Commons (https://commons.era.nih.gov/commons/) with your Principal
Investigator (PI) account.

2. Click the Status tab on the Commons menu bar.

3. Click Recent/Pending eSubmissions near the top of the screen to view a hit list of
available applications.

4. When you find the appropriate application, click the accession number in the Application
ID column to view the status information screen.

5. Click e-Application from the Other Relevant Documents section to view the assembled
application.

2.12 Correcting Errors

Prior to a specified application due date, applicants may make corrections and resubmit an
application through Grants.gov. If applicants make corrections and resubmit the application after
the due date, the application will be considered late. In this case, applicants must include a cover
letter explaining the reasons for the delay and acceptance will be considered on a case-by-case
basis. Also see Section 2.14 for additional information on submission dates.

If errors or warnings result from the validation process, the PD/PI, AOR/SO and Applicant
Contact will be issued an e-mail instructing them to log on to the eRA Commons to review the list
of warnings/errors that were encountered during the validation process. The eRA system will make
every effort to send an e-mail to the PD/PI, AOR/SO and Applicant Contact indicating whether
errors or warnings were detected. However, since e-mail can be unreliable, applicants are
responsible for periodically checking on their application status in the eRA Commons, so that any
errors or warnings can be resolved in the timeliest manner possible, before the deadline. SOs for
the applicant organization, the PD/PI for the application and any Assistants that have been
delegated in eRA Commons to view the PD/PIs status information will have access to the
submission results in eRA Commons.

Please be aware of the distinction between errors and warnings. The word error is used to
characterize any condition which causes the application to be deemed unacceptable for further
consideration. Generally, errors will indicate significant inaccuracies, inconsistencies, omissions,
or incorrect formatting that have been identified in the body of the application. Conversely, the
word warning characterizes any condition that is acceptable, at least for the time being, but worthy
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of bringing to the applicant’s attention. It is at the applicant’s discretion whether a warning
condition requires any action, but some warnings may need to be addressed later in the process.

Failure to comply with stated NIH policies can also result in a submitted application that will not
be considered for review. For this reason, applicants are strongly encouraged to review all
warnings, to ensure that they require no further attention and that they are satisfied with the
validation results. If desired, warnings can be corrected in the same manner as errors.

A Changed/Corrected application may also be submitted if the PDF image, as viewed in the eRA
Commons, is incomplete or inaccurate from that submitted.

Submitting a Changed/Corrected application will overwrite the previous submission and the
previous application cannot be reinstated.

Errors and warnings may be reviewed in the Commons by performing the following steps:

1. After the application has been downloaded from Grants.gov and validated by the system,
login to the eRA Commons (https://commons.era.nih.gov/commons/) using your username
and password.

2. Click the Status tab on the Commons menu bar.
3. Click Recent/Pending eSubmissions.

4. Search for your application by date received, Grants.gov tracking number, or accession
number, if you are the SO. If you are the PI, clicking Recent/Pending eSubmissions will
automatically display a hit list of your applications.

5. A hit list of applications is displayed. If the application was validated with warnings only, or
without encountering any problems whatsoever, then it is identified in the hit list by its NIH
accession number (e.g., “AN:2911064”). This is the same number that Grants.gov displays,
and refers to as the “agency tracking number.”

o Ifany errors were identified during validation, then the application still appears in
the hit list, but in this case it is identified by its Grants.gov tracking number (e.g.,
“GRANTS876543217). This is the number that Grants.gov assigned to your application
at the time of submission.

6. When you find the appropriate application in the hit list (Application Status will read
“eSubmission Error” if errors were received), use the Show Prior Errors link to view the list
of errors/warnings.

7. The error/warning page appears, and you are then able to review all conditions that were
identified during validation. If only warnings were identified, you may elect to take action
and resubmit; however you may also disregard the warnings and proceed to view the
application, as described earlier.

To correct errors and resubmit the application:

1. Make whatever corrections are necessary, wherever appropriate, to your local copy of the
application. Most often this means that you have to edit the data within the application forms
to correct whatever problem or inconsistency that was noted. Be as careful as possible
when correcting your application; NIH’s post-submission materials policy does not allow for
applicants to correct oversights in their application after the due date.
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2. Check the “Changed/Corrected Application” box in the Type of Submission field of the
SF424 (R&R) form.

« If you are submitting this Changed/Corrected application after the due date, be sure to
document the reason for the late submission in the form of a cover letter. NIH makes
no guarantees that applications submitted after the due date will be accepted. See the
NIH late policy for more information.

When you check the Changed/Corrected Application box, Previous Grants.gov
Tracking ID field becomes a required field. Enter the Grants.gov Tracking ID
(GRANTRS87654321) of the previous submission that you are correcting.

« When you have made all of your corrections, save the Changed/Corrected application
to your computer

3. The AOR will have to submit the Changed/Corrected application package to Grants.gov. A
new Grants.gov tracking number will be assigned and the applicant will have to follow the
Changed/Corrected application through Grants.gov to the eRA Commons to view the
application image or the list of errors/warnings received during the validation process. It is
the applicant’s responsibility to track the application through to the eRA Commons. If you
cannot view your application image in the Commons, NIH can’t review your application!
Successful submission may take several rounds of Changed/Corrected applications, since
correcting one error may reveal or create an additional error.

The same e-mail notifications will be issued once the agency has downloaded and validated the re-
submitted application and the PD/PI, AOR/SO, and Applicant Contact will once again be required
to log on to the Commons either to view the application or to review the errors that were
encountered during validation.

The application will only be assigned for scientific review once errors are resolved.

In addition to the validations performed by the eRA system, further administrative review will be
conducted by agency staff. The PD/PI and/or the applicant organization may be contacted for
further corrections/clarifications.

2.13 Post-Submission Application Materials

Grant application materials will only be accepted after submission of the application but before the
initial peer review if they result from unforeseen administrative issues. Exceptions to this policy
are indicated below. See NOT-OD-10-091 and NOT-OD-13-030 for additional information.

The materials should be sent by the AOR to the SRO as a PDF attachment to an e-mail. E-mail
communication is preferred. If e-mail is not feasible, please send a hard copy, addressed to the
SRO.

The original application is kept intact; any application material sent post-submission is sent
separately to reviewers. Updated or supplemental grant application materials used in the peer
review process will be retained as part of the official grant file and remain part of the permanent
record for that application.

Acceptable post-submission materials include:
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o Revised budget page(s) (e.g., change in budget request due to new funding or institutional
acquisition)

« Biographical sketches (e.g., change in senior/key personnel due to the loss of an
investigator)

« Letters of support or collaboration resulting from a change in senior/key personnel due to the
loss of an investigator

o Adjustments resulting from natural disasters (e.g., loss of an animal colony)
o Adjustments resulting from change of institution (e.g., PD/PI moved to another university)
« News of an article accepted for publication

« News of a professional promotion or positive tenure decision for any Program
Directors/Principal Investigators and Senior/Key Personnel also will be accepted as post-
submission application material. The news must be received by the Scientific Review
Officer one month (30 calendar days) prior to the peer review meeting, and demonstrate
concurrence from the Authorized Organization Representative (AOR) of the applicant
organization.

« If an application proposed to use a human embryonic cell line(s) that is approved by the NIH
Stem Cell Registry at least 30 days prior to the peer review meeting, the SRO can include
this update to the reviewers as part of the post-submission materials (see NOT-OD-12-111).

« Videos, within defined limits, (see NOT-OD-12-141). Devices and other non-traditional
materials will not be accepted after submission, unless the application is submitted for a
Funding Opportunity Announcement that specifies other types of allowable post-submission
materials.

Unacceptable post-submission materials [for all applications but those under Exceptions
below] include:

o Updated Specific Aims or Research Strategy pages

o Late-breaking research findings

« Supplemental pages - information not contained in the existing application

o New letters of support or collaboration that do not result from a change in senior/key

personnel due to the loss of an investigator

Exceptions to this policy include:

« Applications submitted in response to Requests for Applications (RFAs) that have only one
due date. Post-submission materials for these applications will be accepted as outlined in
NOT-OD-10-070

« Applications for training grants (see NOT-OD-10-104)

o Certain NIH Funding Opportunity Announcements (FOAs) may allow certain other types of
post-submission materials to facilitate the goals of the program. Such stipulations must be
explained in the FOA in the NIH Guide for Grants and Contracts

Page limits for post-submission materials under this policy:

o All post-submission materials must conform to NIH policy on font size, margins, and paper
size as referenced in Part I 2.6 of the applicable application instructions
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« NIH additional form pages such as budget, biographical sketches, and other required forms
must follow NIH standards for required NIH form pages.

« If post-submission material is not required on a form page, each explanation or letter is
limited to one page (see Acceptable post-submission materials above)

« If the application has subprojects or cores, each subproject or core is allowed explanations
or letters (see Acceptable post-submission materials above), but each explanation or letter is
limited to one page

The additional materials must be submitted to the NIH SRO with the concurrence of the applicant
organization’s designated AOR/SO. Although the content of post-submission materials may
originate from the PD/PI, Contact PD/PI for multiple PD/PI applications, or organizational
officials, the AOR must send the materials directly to the SRO, or must send his/her concurrence
to the PD/PI who will forward the materials and concurrence to the SRO. A communication from
the PD/PI only or with a “cc” to the AOR will not be accepted.

The deadline for receipt of additional materials is one month (30 calendar days) prior to the peer
review meeting. FOAs may provide stricter or more lenient guidance.

After the initial peer review phase is completed, the NIH Chief Grants Management Officer is the
NIH official responsible for accepting additional materials. Most of the materials submitted after
the initial peer review can be submitted as part of the Just-In-Time process (see Part I111.1.7).

2.14 Application Submission Dates

For submission of applications to NIH, each FOA includes an Opportunity Open Date and an
Opportunity Close Date. Many announcements, including those using the “Standard Submission
Dates, noted in Section 2.15, include multiple submission/receipt dates and are active for several
years. These announcements are posted in Grants.gov and the NIH Guide to Grants and Contracts
showing an Open/Close period that spans the entire active period of the announcement. Applicants
should read the Funding Opportunity Announcement carefully for specific submission/receipt dates.
If specific dates are not referenced in the announcement, applicants should refer to the Standard
Submission Dates for Competing Applications at this website:

http://grants.nih. gov/grants/funding/submissionschedule.htm

Applications submitted for the Standard Submission Dates listed are considered on time if they are
submitted to Grants.gov on or before 5 p.m. local time on the appropriate date listed. Applications
submitted to FOAs with a single submission date are considered on time if they are submitted to
Grants.gov on or before 5 p.m. local time on the appropriate date listed. Applications submitted for
Special Receipt Dates are considered on time if they are submitted to Grants.gov on or before 5
p.m. local time on the specified Application Due Date(s). Requests for Applications (RFAs) and
Program Announcements with Special Referral Considerations (PARs) with special receipt dates
always must be received by Grants.gov on the dates designated in the announcement.

Weekend/Federal Holiday Submission Due Dates. When an application submission due date
falls on a weekend or Federal holiday, the application deadline is automatically extended to the
next business day. The application will be on time if it is submitted on or before the following
business day. As always, applicants must check the eRA Commons to view their application and to
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ensure they have addressed any errors (instances of non-compliance with NIH business rules)
identified by NIH systems.

Late Applications. Permission is not granted in advance for submission of a late application. Late
applications are accepted only in extenuating circumstances. If an application is submitted late, a
cover letter attachment explaining the reasons for the delay must be included with the signed,
completed application. Late applications are evaluated on an individual basis considering the
reasons provided. See NIH Guide Notice dated January 13, 2011 - NIH Policy on Late Submission

of Grant Applications.

NIH will consider accepting late applications based on the acceptability of the explanation and the
processing time required for two different kinds of submission/receipt dates.

« Regular Standard Submission/Receipt Dates: To be considered applications must be
received at the NIH within two weeks of the standard submission date.

« Expedited Standard Submission/Receipt Dates: To be considered applications must be
received at the NIH within one week of the standard submission date. SBIR and STTR
applications submitted in response to standard receipt dates fall in this category.

« NIH will not consider late applications for the Special Receipt Dates for RFAs and
PARs. This includes the special receipt dates (August 10, December 10, April 10) for
resubmission applications that are part of the New Investigator Initiative.

« NIH does not expect to accept any applications received beyond the window of
consideration.

The windows of time for consideration of late applications have been carefully chosen so that the
late applications can be processed with the cohort of on-time applications. In all cases, when the
regular standard submission date or expedited submission date falls on a weekend or federal
holiday and is extended to the next business day, the window of consideration for late applications
will be calculated from that business day. Note that the late window always ends in a receipt (not
submission) date.

If an application is submitted late, attach a Cover Letter to the SF424 (R&R) form using the Cover
Letter Attachment field to provide specific information on the timing and nature of the cause of the
delay. No other documentation is expected. Late applications are evaluated on an individual basis
considering the reasons provided. Contacting the Division of Receipt and Referral, Center for
Scientific Review (CSR), NIH, or any other NIH official in advance will not influence the
acceptance of a late application.

Related Guide Notices include:

« NOT-OD-11-035 NIH Policy on Late Submission of Grant Applications at
http://grants.nih. gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-OD-11-035.html

2.15 Submission, Review and Award Cycles

The PHS submission, review, and award schedule is provided at this website:
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/dates.htm. For specialized grant applications, consult with the
appropriate PHS agency prior to the preparation of an application.

Application Assignment Information
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Competing grant applications that have been successfully submitted through Grants.gov (including
correcting all errors and the grant application assembled by the eRA Commons system) will be
processed through the Division of Receipt and Referral, CSR, NIH unless otherwise stated. The
application will be assigned to an appropriate Scientific Review Group and awarding component
(s). Assignment is based on the scientific content of the application using established referral
guidelines. Business rule validations are conducted by the system as well as NIH staff.

Assignment to Review Group. The Center for Scientific Review (CSR) will assign appropriately
completed applications to the Scientific Review Groups (commonly referred to as “SRGs” or
“study sections”) that will perform the scientific/technical merit review. The CSR lists the
recurring review panels (http://cms.csr.nih.gov/PeerReviewMeetings/CSRIRGDescription/), and
you may suggest a specific group in the Cover Letter Attachment.

Assignment to Relevant Potential Awarding Component(s) (ICs). In addition, CSR will assign
each application to the agency awarding component that is the potential funding component. When
the scientific areas and the research proposed in a grant application are sufficiently relevant to the
program responsibilities of two or more awarding components, CSR may assign your application to
all such components. The component that has the most relevant program responsibility is
designated as the primary assignee. The other components that have an interest in your application
are designated as secondary assignees. If your application is eligible for funding and the primary
assignee does not intend to make an award, the secondary assignees will be given the opportunity
to do so. Although these suggestions will be taken into consideration, the final determination will
be made by the agencies participating in the Funding Opportunity Announcement.

After the submission date, usually within two (2) weeks, the PD/PI and the applicant organization
will be able to access in the eRA Commons and view the following information regarding the grant
application:

o Application assignment number;

« Name, address, and telephone number of the Scientific Review Officer (if the review takes
place in CSR) of the Scientific Review Group to which the application has been assigned
for peer review; and

o Assigned Institute/Center information.

Review outcome and other important information are also available in the Commons.

If assignment information is not available in the eRA Commons within two weeks of the
submission date, contact the Division of Receipt and Referral, Center for Scientific
Review (CSR), National Institutes of Health, Bethesda, MD 20892-7720, (301) 435-0715,
email csrdrr@mail.nih.gov. If there is a change in assignment, you will receive a
notification and the change will be reflected in the eRA Commons.

Applicant investigators must not communicate directly with any review group member about an
application either before or after the review. Failure to strictly observe this policy will create
serious breaches of confidentiality and conflicts of interest in the peer review process. From the
time of assignment to the time the review of your application is complete, applicant investigators
must direct all questions to the Scientific Review Officer. This individual is in charge of the
review group and is identified in the eRA Commons.
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2.16 Resources for Finding Help

2.16.1 Finding Help for Grants.gov Registration or Submissions

If help is needed with the Grants.gov registration process or with the technical aspects of
submitting an application through the Grants.gov system, check first the resources available at
Grants.gov. If you are on deadline for submitting an application and are experiencing technical
difficulties with the submission, contact the Grants.gov and eRA Commons Help Desk
immediately.

Grants.gov customer support is also provided by the following office:

Grants.gov Program Management Office
200 Independence Avenue, SW

HHH Building, Room 739F

Washington, DC 20201

Grants.gov Self-Service Web Portal: https://grants-portal.psc.gov/Welcome.aspx?pt=Grants

Grants.gov Help Desk: support@grants.gov

Grants.gov Contact Center Phone Number: 800-518-4726 (Toll Free), 606-545-5035 (Local
or International)

The Contact Center is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week (except Federal holidays).

2.16.2 Finding Help for the eRA Commons Registration or eRA
Commons Validation Processes

If help is needed with the eRA Commons registration process for the applicant organization and
PD/PIs; with using ASSIST, or with the application validation process in the Commons after
submission through Grants.gov, check first the resources available at the Applying Electronically
website: (http://grants.nih.gov/grants/ElectronicReceipt/).

eRA Commons customer support is also provided by the eRA Commons Help Desk:

eRA Website: http://era.nih.gov

eRA Commons Website: https://commons.era.nih.gov/commons/index.jsp

eRA Commons On-line Resources and Web Ticketing: http://grants.nih.gov/support
eRA Commons Phone: 301-402-7469, 866-504-9552 (Toll Free), 301-451-5939 (TTY)

The eRA Commons Help Desk hours of operation are Monday-Friday from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Eastern Time (except Federal holidays).

NOTE: To help expedite your Help Desk request, we recommend that you have the following
information readily available (NOTE: Additional details may be required depending upon the
type of issue/request):
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« Full Name of Affected User

« Full Name of Institution/Organization

o Grants.gov Tracking Number

o Submission Date

« Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA)
o Principal Investigator’s (P1) Username

« Signing Official’s (SO) Username

2.16.3 Finding Help for Application Preparation

If after reviewing this application instruction guide, help is still needed in preparing the application,
contact GrantsInfo:
GrantsInfo Phone: 301-435-0714, 301-451-5936 (TTY)

GrantsInfo E-mail: GrantsInfo@nih.gov

2.16.4 Finding Help for SBIR/STTR Specific Inquiries

Questions of a general nature about the NIH SBIR/STTR program should be directed to:

NIH SBIR/STTR Program Office
Phone: 301-435-2688

Fax: 301-480-0146

E-mail: sbir@od.nih.gov

2.16.5 Finding Help for SBA Company Registry

For questions and for technical assistance concerning the SBA Company Registry, please contact
the SBA at http://sbir.gov/feedback?type=reg.
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3. Using the Grant Application Package

This section describes the steps an applicant takes once the appropriate FOA (see Section 2.4) has
been located and the corresponding grant application package has been successfully downloaded.

3.1 Verify Grant Information

When you select a funding opportunity in Grants.gov Apply, verify that the information shown in
the Grant Application Package screen corresponds to the funding opportunity for which you wish to
apply. Grants.gov auto-populates the following information:

o Opportunity Title

o Offering Agency

o CFDA Number

« CFDA Description

o Opportunity Number

o Competition ID

o Opportunity Open Date

o Opportunity Close Date

o Agency Contact

»
sl Grant Application Package [ Print | [ cancel
Opportunity Title: |I|imited Competition: Training Programs for Critical HIV|
Offering Agency: |Nat10nal Institutes of Health |

CFDA Number:
CFDA Description:

Opportunity Number: PAR-13-215

Competition ID: FORMS-C
Opportunity Open Date 08 /25/2013
Opportunity Close Date:
Agency Contact

07/30/2015

eRA Commonzs Help Desk

Monday to Friday 7 am to & pm ET
E-mail: helpdesk@od.nih.gowv
Fhone: 1-866-504-9552

CFDA Number Field: Many FOAs include multiple CFDA (Catalog for Domestic Assistance)
numbers. When this is the case, the CFDA Number and CFDA Description fields will appear
blank in the Grants.gov Grant Application Package screen shown above. The appropriate CFDA
number will be automatically assigned once the application is assigned to the appropriate agency
awarding component.

Opportunity Open Date & Close Date Fields: Many FOAs posted by NIH and other PHS
agencies include multiple submission/receipt dates and are active for several years. These
announcements are posted in Grants.gov showing an Open/Close period that spans the entire active




period of the announcement. Applicants should read the funding opportunity announcement
carefully for specific submission/receipt dates. If specific dates are not referenced in the
announcement, applicants should refer to the PHS submission, review, and award schedule at
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/dates.htm. Applications submitted after a posted submission date will
normally not be held over into the next review cycle. Instead, the PD/PI will be notified and will
have to submit the application again. See Part I, Section 2.14 of this Guide for more information on
the late application policy.

3.2 Enter the Name for the Application

Enter a name for the application in the Application Filing Name field (this is a required field). This
name is for use solely by the applicant for tracking the application through the Grants.gov
submission process. It is not used by the receiving agency.

This oppertunity is only open to organizations, applicants who are submitting grant applications on behalf of a company, state, local or
tribal government, academia, or other type of organization.

Application Filing Name: | |

3.3 Open and Complete Mandatory Documents

Click the form name to navigate to the form in the application package and complete all of the
Mandatory forms. Complete the form titled SF 424 (R&R) first. Data entered in this form
populates other mandatory and optional forms where applicable.

Select Forms to Complete

Mandatory | Save | | Save & Submit | | Check Package for Erraors

SE424 (R & R)

FHS 398 Research Plan

PHS 398 Cover Page Supplement

Research & Related Budget

Research and Related Senior/Key Person Profile (Expandead)

Eesearch And Related Other Project Information

Project/Performance Site | ocation(s)

3.4 Open and Complete Optional Documents

These documents can be used to provide additional information for the application or may be
required for specific types of grant activities. Information on each of these documents is found
later in these instructions.



http://grants.nih.gov/grants/dates.htm

Click the check box next to the form name to add the form to the application package. To navigate
to the form, click on the form name. To remove an optional form from the application package,
uncheck the box next to the form name.

Optional

[C] Planned Enroliment Report

[T] PHS 398 Cumnulative Inclusion Enrollment Report

[l R &R Subaward Budget Attachment(s) Form 5 YR 30 ATT

3.5 Submitting the Application via Grants.gov

Once you have properly completed all required documents and attached any required or optional
documentation, click on the Check Package for Errors button to ensure that you have
successfully completed all required data fields. If any of the fields required by Grants.gov are not
completed you will receive an error notice which will indicate where revision is needed within
your package. Correct any errors or if none are found, save the application package. The Save &
Submit button will now become active and clicking this button will begin the application
submission process. Only after the package has been saved with no errors will the Save & Submit
button become active. The application package must then be saved once more before the
submission process begins. Only an AOR will be able to perform the submit action, and they will
be taken to the applicant login page to enter the Grants.gov username and password that was
established in the Grants.gov registration process (if not connected to the internet you will be
instructed to do so).




4. Completing the SF 424 Research and Related
(R&R) Forms

4.1 Overview

This section contains all of the instructions you will need to complete the SF424 (R&R) forms.

s
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}"'”““~2g Any agency-specific instructions on SF 424 (R&R) forms used federal-wide are denoted by
the HHS logo displayed to the left of the paragraph, as illustrated here.

Conformance to all instructions is required and strictly enforced. Agencies may withdraw any
applications from the review process that are not consistent with these instructions.

As you navigate through the Grants.gov forms, required fields are outlined in red. Data entered into
a specific field is not accepted until you have navigated to the next field. If you enter invalid or
incomplete information in a field, you will receive an error message.

. Note the outlined fields required for submissions, and the Check Package for Errors
button, only refer to Grants.gov requirements and errors. They do not reflect all agency
requirements or PHS business processes. Agency validations will be performed by the eRA
Commons system after the application has been submitted.

For those forms that are more than one page, click the Next button at the top of the form or scroll
down (using the scroll bar on the right hand side of the screen) to navigate to a subsequent page.
Once all data have been entered scroll up using the scroll bar to return to the Grant Application
Package Screen.




4.2 SF 424 (R&R) Form

OMB Number: 4040-0001

APPLICATION FOR FEDERAL ASSISTANCE 3. DATE RECEIVED BY STATE | State Application Identifier
SF 424 (R&R) | || |

1. TYPE OF SUBMISSION 4. a. Federal Identifier | |

||:| Pre-application DAppIication DChanged/Corrected Application | b. Agency Routing Identifier

2. DATE SUBMITTED Applicant Identifier
| | | | ¢. Previous Grants.gov
Tracking ID | |

5. APPLICANT INFORMATION Organizational DUNS: I |
Legal Name: | |

Department: | | Division: | |

Street1:

Street2:

City: | County / Pan'sh:l |

State: | Province:| |
Country: | USA: UNITED STATES | 1P/ Postal Code: | |

Person to be contacted on matters involving this application

Prefix: First Name: I I Middle Name:| |
Last Name: | I Suffix:

Position/Title: | |

Streett: | |

Street2: | |

City: | County / Parish:l |

State: | Province: ‘ |

Country: | UsA: UNITED STATES | 2P/ Postal Code: | |
Phone Number: I | Fax Number:l |

Email: |
6. EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION (E/N) or (TINj: :

7.TYPE OF APPLICANT: I Please select one of -he fsllowing I
Other (Specify): | ‘
Small Business Organization Type |:| Women Owned |:| Socially and Economically Disadvantaged
. TYPE OF APPLICATION: If Revision, mark appropriate box{es)
|:| New |:| Resubmission |:|A. Increase Award |:|B. Decrease Award |:|C. Increase Duration |:|D. Decrease Duration
|:| Renewal |:| Continuation |:| Revision |:| E. Other (specify):l |

Is this application being submitted to other agencies? |ygs m What other Agencies?

9. NAME OF FEDERAL AGENCY: 10. CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE NUMBER:l

| | TITLE:

11. DESCRIPTIVE TITLE OF APPLICANT'S PROJECT:

12. PROPOSED PROJECT: 13. CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT OF APPLICANT
Start Date Ending Date

1. Type of Submission

Check one of the Type of Submission boxes. If this submission is to change or correct a previously
submitted "New", "Resubmission", "Renewal", or "Revision" application, click the




Changed/Corrected Application box and enter the Grants.gov tracking number in the Previous
Grants.gov Tracking ID field.

Unless requested by the agency, applicants may not use this to submit changes after the closing
date. This field is required.

s
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}"”%?g Pre-Application: Unless specifically noted in a Funding Opportunity Announcement, the
Pre-application option is not used by NIH and other PHS agencies.

Changed/Corrected Application: This box must be used if you need to submit the same
application again to correct system validation errors, application assembly problems, or to
incorporate other changes. When submitting a Changed/Corrected Application:

« If submitting after the submission date, include an explanation in the Cover Letter
attachment.

« Submitting a Changed/Corrected application replaces the previous submission and
removes the previous submission from consideration. Once an application has moved
forward to agency staff following the two-day application viewing window,
subsequent Changed/Corrected applications will not be accepted unless the
application is withdrawn. Note that if you are submitting additional grant application
materials after the submission date some special guidelines may apply. See NIH
Guide Notice NOT-OD-10-115 (http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-
OD-10-115.html) for the NIH Policy on Post-Submission Application Materials.

o When you check the Changed/Correct Application box the Previous Grants.gov
Tracking ID becomes a required field.

o Do not use the Changed/Corrected Application box to denote a submission of a
resubmission or amended application. That will be indicated in the Type of
Application.

SBIR/STTR Phase II applications may be submitted either before or after expiration of the
Phase I budget period. However, Phase I grant applications should be submitted no later
than the first six submission dates following expiration of the Phase I budget period.

Applicant small business concerns are reminded that Phase II funding is based on the results
of Phase I, demonstration of feasibility, scientific, and technical merit, and commercial
potential of the Phase II application. Applicants are cautioned that applications
demonstrating insufficient results in Phase I may not receive a score in the peer review
process.

2. Date Submitted and Applicant Identifier

Enter the date the application is submitted to Federal agency (or State if applicable). In the
applicant identifier field enter the applicant’s control number (if applicable).

"‘nng Note the Applicant Identifier field is a control number created by the applicant organization,
not the Federal agency.

3. Date Received by State and State Application Identifier



http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-OD-10-115.html
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-OD-10-115.html

Enter the date received by state (if applicable). In the State Application Identifier field, enter the
state application identifier, if applicable.
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qi“~?g For submissions to NIH and other PHS agencies, leave these fields blank.

4.a. Federal Identifier

When a New Application is being submitted following a Pre-Application, enter the agency-
assigned pre-application number, if applicable. If this is a continuation, revision, or renewal
application, enter the assigned Federal Identifier number (for example, award number)--even if
submitting a Changed/Corrected application.

Q@ For submissions to NIH and other PHS agencies, include only the IC and serial number of
the previously assigned application/award number (e.g., use CA987654 from
1IR01CA987654-01A1). The Federal Identifier is required for Resubmission, Renewal, and
Revision applications.

Applicants to NIH and other PHS agencies should complete this field when submitting a
resubmission, renewal or revision application. When submitting a “New” application, this
field should remain blank

4.b. Agency Routing Identifier

Enter the agency-assigned routing identifier per the agency-specific instructions. This is an
optional field. Unless specifically noted in a program announcement, the Agency Routing Identifier
is not used by NIH or other PHS agencies.

4.c. Previous Grants.gov Tracking ID
Enter the previous Grants.gov tracking number, if applicable.

5. Applicant Information

s
o

('“”“*«2@ This information is for the Applicant Organization, not a specific individual.

The small business concern is ALWAYS the applicant organization for an SBIR or STTR
award (e.g., ABC Incorporated).




Field Name Instructions

Organizational DUNS Enter the DUNS or DUNS+4 number of the applicant
organization. This field is required.

s
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‘”’*}g For submission to NIH and other PHS agencies, this
DUNS must match the number entered in the eRA
Commons Institutional Profile for the applicant
organization. The applicant AOR is encouraged to
confirm that a DUNS has been entered in the eRA
Commons Institutional Profile (IPF) prior to submitting an
application. If your organization does not already have a
DUNS number, you will need to go to the Dun &
Bradstreet website at http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform to
obtain the number. The same DUNS should be used in the
eRA Commons IPF, Grants.gov and in the DUNS field in
the application.

Legal Name Enter the legal name of the applicant which will undertake the
assistance activity, enter the complete address of the applicant
(including county/parish and country), and name, telephone
number, e-mail, and fax of the person to contact on matters
related to this application.

Department Enter the name of the primary organizational department,
service, laboratory, or equivalent level within the organization
that will undertake the assistance activity.

Division Enter the name of the primary organizational division, office, or
major subdivision which will undertake the assistance activity.

Streetl Enter the first line of the street address for the applicant in
“Street]” field. This field is required.

Street2 Enter the second line of the street address for the applicant in
the “Street2” field. This field is optional.

City Enter the City for address of the applicant. This field is required.

County/Parish Enter the county or parish for address of the applicant.

State Enter the State where the applicant is located. This field is

required if the applicant is located in the United States.



http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform

Field Name Instructions

Province Enter the province.

Sy

%‘”’w«?g If “Country” is not Canada, please leave blank.

Country Select the country for the applicant address.

e,
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E‘”’%«?g For SBIR/STTR applications, the small business concern
must be located in the United States.

ZIP Code Enter the nine-digit postal code (e.g., ZIP code) of applicant.
This field is required if the applicant is located in the United
States. This field is required if a State is selected; optional for
Province.

Person to be contacted on matters involving this application:

e

‘h@ This information is for the Administrative or Business Official, not the PD/PI. This person is
the individual to be notified if additional information is needed and/or if an award is made.
To avoid potential errors and delays in processing, please ensure that the information
provided in this section is identical to the AO profile information contained in the eRA

Commons.
Field Name Instructions

Prefix Enter the prefix (e.g., Mr., Mrs., Rev.) for the person to contact
on matters related to this application.

First Name Enter the first (given) name of the person to contact on matters
related to this application. This field is required.

Middle Name Enter the middle name of the person to contact on matters related
to this application.

Last Name Enter the last (family) name of the person to contact on matters
related to this application. This field is required.

Suffix Enter the suffix (e.g., Jr., Sr., Ph.D.) for the person to contact on
matters related to this application.

Phone Number Enter the daytime phone number for the person to contact on
matters related to this application. This field is required




Field Name

Instructions

Fax Number Enter the fax number for the person to contact on matters related
to this application.

E-mail Enter the e-mail address for the person to contact on matters
related to this application

6. Employer Identification

Enter either TIN or EIN as assigned by the Internal Revenue Service. If your organization is not in

N
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the U.S., enter 44-4444444. This field is required.

R If you have a 12-digit EIN established for grant awards from NIH or other PHS agencies,

enter all 12 digits (e.g., 1123456789A1); this includes non-U.S. organizations. For
SBIR/STTR applications, the small business must be located in the United States.

7. Type of Applicant

v
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q"‘%?g This information is for the Applicant Organization, not a specific individual AOR or PD/PI

Field Name

Instructions

Type of Applicant

- ty,
&
H

Select the appropriate applicant type code. If Small Business is
selected as Type of Applicant, then note if the organization is
Woman-owned and/or Socially and Economically
Disadvantaged.

s,

e For SBIR/STTR applicant organizations, select R. Small
Business.

The applicant organization must certify that it will qualify
as a small business concern at the time of award.

Other (Specify)

Complete only if “Other” is selected as the Type of Applicant.

Woman Owned

Check if you are a woman-owned small business — a small
business that is at least 51% owned by a woman or women, who
also control and operate it.

Socially and Economically
Disadvantaged

Check if you are a socially and economically disadvantaged
small business, as determined by the U.S. Small Business
Administration pursuant to Section 8(a) of the Small Business
Act U.S.C. 637(a).
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8. Type of Application

Part I: Instructions for Preparing and Submitting an Application
1-64



Field Name Instructions

Type of Application Select the type from the following list. Check only one. This
field is required.

« New: An application that is being submitted to an agency
for the first time.

o Resubmission: An application that has been previously
submitted, but was not funded, and is being resubmitted
for new consideration.

« Renewal: An application requesting additional funding for
a period subsequent to that provided by a current award. A
renewal application competes with all other applications
and must be developed as fully as though the applicant is
applying for the first time.

« Continuation: A non-competing application for an
additional funding/budget period within a previously
approved project period.

« Revision: An application that proposes a change in

1. the Federal Government’s financial obligations or
contingent liability from an existing obligation, or

2. any other change in the terms and conditions of the
existing award.

o New. Check this option when submitting an application
for the first time or in accordance with other submission
policies. See also the policy Resubmission of Unpaid RFA
Applications and Resubmission of Applications with a
Changed Grant Activity Code

o Resubmission. Check this option when submitting a
revised (altered or corrected) or amended application. See
also the NIH Policy on Resubmission Applications.
Institutions submitting revision or renewal applications
that are also resubmissions are instructed to select
“Resubmission.” For additional information, see NIH
Guide Notice NOT-OD-10-052,
http://grants.nih. gov/grants/guide/notice-files/not-od-10-
052.html).

o Continuation. For the purposes of NIH and other PHS
agencies, the box for Continuation is only used for
specific FOAs.

« Revison. Used for both competing revisions and non-
cometing administrative supplements.

This field also affects how you complete item 4a.Federal
Identifier. If “Type of Application” is “New”, you can leave the



http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/424/SupplementalInstructions.pdf#1_2_resubmission_of_unfunded_rfa
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/424/SupplementalInstructions.pdf#1_3_nih_policy_on_resubmission
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/not-od-10-052.html
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/not-od-10-052.html
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/not-od-10-052.html

Field Name Instructions

Federal Identifier field blank on the first submission attempt.
However, the Federal Identifier field becomes a required field
when submitting a Changed/Corrected application to address
errors/warnings. When submitting a Changed/Corrected “New”
application, enter the Grants.gov tracking number of the previous
submission attempt (e.g. GRANT87654321). If you are unable to
find the tracking number, enter “N/A”.

If “Type of Application” is “Renewal,” “Revision,” or
“Resubmission,” enter the IC and serial number of the previously
assigned application/award number (e.g., use CA987654 from
IR01ICA987654-01A1).

If Revision, mark If Revision, mark appropriate box(es). May select more than
appropriate box(es) one:

A. Increase Award

B. Decrease Award

C. Increase Duration

D. Decrease Duration

E. Other
If “Other” is selected, please specify in the text box provided.

L
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o For the purposes of NIH and other PHS agencies, the
boxes for options B, C, D, and E will generally not be
used and should not be selected unless specifically
addressed in a particular FOA.

Other If “Other” is selected for Revision, add text to explain.




Field Name Instructions

Is this application being Check applicable box. This field is required.

submitted to other agencies? +_“’/

s In the field “Is this application being submitted to other
agencies?,” please check the box “yes” if one or more of
the specific aims submitted in your application are also
contained in a similar, identical, or essentially identical
application submitted to another Federal agency. Indicate
the agency or agencies to which the application has been
submitted. For additional information, please see NIH
Guide Notice NOT-0OD-09-100, Reminder and
Clarification of NIH Policies on Similar, Identical, or
Essentially Identical Applications, Submission of
Applications Following RFA Review, and Submission of
Applications with a Changed Activity Code
http://grants.nih. gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-OD-
09-100.html.

What Other Agencies? Enter Agency Name.

9. Name of Federal Agency

Name the Federal agency from which assistance is being requested with this application. This field
is pre-populated by Grants.gov

10. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number and Title (CFDA)

This is the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance number of the program under which assistance
is requested. This field is pre-populated from the opportunity package.

"'*}g This field may be blank if you are applying to an opportunity that references multiple CFDA
numbers. When this field is blank, leave it blank; the field will not allow any data entry. The
appropriate CFDA number will be automatically assigned by the agency once the
application is assigned to the appropriate awarding component.

11. Descriptive Title of Applicant’s Project

Enter a brief descriptive title of the project. This field is required.

gy

‘h@ A “new” application must have a different title from any other PHS project submitted for
the same application due date. A “resubmission” or “renewal” application should normally
have the same title as the previous grant or application. If the specific aims of the project
have significantly changed, choose a new title.



http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-OD-09-100.html
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A “revision” application must have the same title as the currently funded grant.

NIH and other PHS agencies limit title character length to 200 characters, including the
spaces between words and punctuation. Be sure to only use standard characters in the
descriptive title: A through Z, a through z, 0 through 9, and underscore ().

An SBIR/STTR Phase II application should have the same title as the previously awarded
Phase I grant.

12. Proposed Project

Start Date: Enter the proposed start date of the project. This field is required.
Ending Date: Enter the proposed ending date of the project. This field is required.

L,
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q"‘"w?g Phase I: Routinely, SBIR Phase I awards do not exceed six (6) months and STTR Phase |
awards do not exceed one year.

Phase II: Routinely, SBIR and STTR Phase Il awards do not exceed two years.

Under special circumstances, applicants to NIH may propose longer periods of time for
completion of the research project (e.g., feasibility demonstration). Such requests that
deviate from the guidelines must be thoroughly justified. Project duration deviations apply to
NIH ONLY, as CDC, FDA, and ACF do not make awards for periods longer than the

stated guidelines.
13. Congressional District of Applicant

Enter the Congressional District in the format: 2 character State Abbreviation — 3 character
District Number. Examples: CA-005 for California’s 5th district, CA-012 for California’s 12th

district.
If outside the U.S., enter 00-000.

To locate your congressional district, visit the Grants.gov Web site.

SR
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ﬁ“"*~?g For States and U.S. territories with only a single congressional district enter “001” for the
district code. For jurisdictions with no representative, enter “099”. For jurisdictions with a
nonvoting delegate, enter “098” for the district number. Example: DC-098, PR-098.
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14. PROJECT DIRECTOR/PRINCIPAL INVESTIGATOR CONTACT INFORMATION

Prefix: FirstName: | | Middie Name:l I

Last Name: | | Sufﬂx:l
PositiorvTitle: | |

Organization Name: | |

Department:| | Division: | |

Streett:

Street2:
City: | County / Parish: | |

Stater | | Province: | |

Country: | USh: UNITED STATES | ZIP / Postal Code:l |

Phone Number: | | FaxNumber: | |

Email: | |

15. ESTIMATED PROJECT FUNDING 16. 1S APPLICATION SUBJECT TO REVIEW BY STATE EXECUTIVE ORDER
12372 PROCESS?

a. YES I:‘ THIS PREAPPLICATION/APPLICATION WAS MADE
AVAILABLE TO THE STATE EXECUTIVE ORDER 12372

a. Total Federal Funds Requested | |
I PROCESS FOR REVIEW ON:

b. Total Non-Federal Funds |

b.-NO ™ PROGRAM IS NOT COVERED BY E.O. 12372; OR

l:‘ PROGRAM HAS NOT BEEN SELECTED BY STATE FOR
REVIEW

c. Total Federal & Non-Federal Funds |

d. Estimated Program Income |

17. By signing this application, | certify {1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications* and (2) that the statements herein are
true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. |also provide the required assurances * and agree to comply with any resulting
terms if | accept an award. | am aware that any false, fictitious. or fraudulent statements or claims may subject me to criminal, civil, or
administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 18, Section 1001)

*The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or agency specific instructions.

18. SFLLL (Disclosure of Lobbying Activities) or other Explanatory Documentation
[ | I Add Attachment I | Delste Attachment I I View Attachment |

19. Authorized Representative

Preﬂx:l:l First Name: | | Middle Name: | |
Last Name: | | Suffix:

Position/Title: |
Organization: |
Department: | Division: |
Street1: | |
Street2: | |
city: [ | County / Parish: | |
State: | ] Province:| |
Country: | USh: UNITED STATES | ZIP / Postal Code: I I
Phone Number: I I Fax Number: |
Email: | |
Signature of Authorized Representative Date Signed
Completed on submission to Grants.gowv | ‘ Completed on submission to Grants.gov
20. Pre-application | | | Add Attachment ”Delete Attachment” View Attachment |
21. Cover Letter Attachment | | | Add Attachment ”Delete Attachment” View Attachment |

14. Program Director/Principal Investigator (PD/PI) Contact Information
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”““}g If submitting an application reflecting Multiple PD/PIs, the individual designated as the
Contact PI must be affiliated in the Commons with the applicant organization should be
entered here. See Section 4.5 Senior/Key Person Profile Forms for additional instructions for
Multiple PD/PIs. To avoid potential errors and delays in processing, please ensure that the
information provided in this section is identical to the PD/PI profile information contained in
the eRA Commons.

Name the one person responsible to the applicant small business concern for the scientific
and technical direction of the project if a single PD/PI application, or the contact PD/PI for
a multiple PD/PI application. PHS staff conduct official business only with the named
PD/PIs and organizational/institutional officials. A revision/supplemental application must
have the same PD/PI as the currently funded grant.

Field Name Instructions

Prefix The Project Director/Principal Investigator (PD/PI) is the
individual responsible for the overall scientific and technical
direction of the project. Enter the prefix (e.g., Mr., Mrs., Rev.)
for the name of the PD/PI.

First Name Enter the first name of the PD/PI. This field is required.
Middle Name Enter the middle name of the PD/PIL.

Last Name Enter the last name of the PD/PI. This field is required.
Suffix Enter the suffix (e.g., Jr., Sr., Ph.D.) of the PD/PL.

o

hi%~?g Do not use this field to record degrees. Degrees for the
PD/PI are requested separately in the Senior/Key Person

Profile.
Position/Title Enter the Position/Title of the PD/PI.
Organization Name Enter the organization name of the PD/PI.
Department Enter the name of primary organizational department, service,
laboratory, or equivalent level within the organization of the
PD/PIL
Division Enter the name of primary organizational division, office, or

major subdivision of the PD/PI.

Streetl Enter first line of the street address for the PD/PI in the
“Street]” field. This field is required.




Field Name Instructions

Street2 Enter the second line of the street address for the PD/PI in the
“Street2” field. This field is optional.

City Enter the City for address of the PD/PI. This field is required.
County/Parish Enter the county/ or parish for address of the PD/PI.
State Enter the State where the PD/PI is located. This field is required

if the PD/PI is located in the United States.

Province Enter the province for PD/PIL.

e
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qi””“v?g If “Country” is not Canada, please leave blank.

Country Select the country for the PD/PI address.

ZIP/Postal Code Enter the postal code (e.g., ZIP code) of the PD/PI. This field is
required if the PD/PI is located in the United States.

Phone Number Enter the daytime phone number for the PD/PI. This field is
required

Fax Number Enter the fax number for the PD/PI.

E-mail Enter the e-mail address for the PD/PI. This field is required.

AL
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Pﬁ"%?g Program Director/Principal Investigator Criteria

SBIR

Under the SBIR program, for both Phase I and Phase 11, the primary employment of the PD/PI
must be with the small business concern at the time of award and during the conduct of the
proposed project. Primary employment means that more than one half (greater than 50%) of the
PD/PI’s time is spent in the employ of the small business concern. Primary employment with a
small business concern precludes full-time employment at another organization. Occasionally,
deviations from this requirement may occur. Such deviations must be approved in writing by the
grants management officer after consultation with the NIH SBIR/STTR Program Coordinator.

For Multiple PD/PI applications: The first PI listed must be affiliated with the applicant small
business concern organization submitting the application and will serve as the contact PD/PI. For
both SBIR Phase I and SBIR Phase II, the primary employment of the “Contact PD/PI” must be
with the small business concern at the time of award and during the conduct of the proposed
project. As noted above, occasionally, deviations from this requirement may occur. Such deviations




must be approved in writing by the grants management officer after consultation with the NIH
SBIR/STTR Program Coordinator.

As defined in 42 CFR 52, the PD/PI(s) is or are the “...individual(s) judged by the applicant
organization to have the appropriate level of authority and responsibility to direct the project or
program supported by the grant and who is or are responsible for the scientific and technical
direction of the project.” When the proposed PD/PI clearly does not have sufficient qualifications
to assume this role, the application is not likely to receive a favorable evaluation.

If the application has the likelihood for funding, the awarding component will require
documentation to verify the eligibility of the PD/PI, if at the time of submission of the application,
the PD/PI is a less-than-full-time employee of the small business concern, is concurrently
employed by another organization, or gives the appearance of being concurrently employed by
another organization, whether for a paid or unpaid position.

If the PD/PI is employed or appears to be employed by an organization other than the applicant
organization in a capacity such as Research Fellow, Consultant, Adjunct Professor, Clinical
Professor, Clinical Research Professor, or Associate, a letter must be provided by each employing
organization confirming that, if an SBIR grant is awarded to the applicant small business concern,
the PD/PI is or will become a less-than-half-time employee of such organization and will remain
so for the duration of the SBIR project. If the PD/PI is employed by a university, such a letter must
be provided by the Dean's office or equivalent; for other organizations, the letter must be signed by
a corporate official.

This requirement applies also to those individuals engaged currently as the PD/PI on an active
SBIR project. All current employment and all other appointments of the PD/PI must be identified in
his or her “Biographical Sketch” required as part of the application. Be certain that correct
beginning and ending dates are indicated for each employment record listed.

STTR

For both Phase I and Phase II, the primary employment of the principal investigator must be with
the SBC or the research institution at the time of award and during the conduct of the proposed
project. Primary employment means that more than one-half of the principal investigator's time is
spent in the employ of the SBC or the research institution. This precludes full-time employment
with another organization aside from the SBC or the research institution. An SBC may replace the
principal investigator on an STTR Phase I or Phase II award, subject to approval in writing by the
funding agreement officer. For purposes of the STTR Program, personnel obtained through a
Professional Employer Organization or other similar personnel leasing company may be considered
employees of the awardee. This is consistent with SBA's size regulations, 13 CFR 121.106—Small
Business Size Regulations.

The PD/PI must commit a minimum of 10% (1.2 calendar months) effort to the project and the
PD/PI must have a formal appointment with or commitment to the applicant small business
concern, which is characterized by an official relationship between the small business concern and
that individual. Such a relationship does not necessarily involve a salary or other form of
remuneration. In all cases, however, the PD/PI’s official relationship with the grantee must entail
sufficient opportunity for the PD/PI to carry out his or her responsibilities for the overall scientific
and technical direction of the project. Documentation (e.g., consortium and contractual
arrangements) describing the official relationship of the PD/PI with the applicant small business




concern should NOT be submitted with the grant application, but a copy must be furnished upon the
request of the NIH awarding component.

For Multiple PD/PI applications: The first PD/PI listed must be affiliated with the applicant small
business concern and will serve as the Contact PD/PI. For STTR, the Contact PD/PI may be from
either the SBC or the single partnering research institution. Note: the Contact PD/PI must have a
formal appointment with or commitment to the SBC, which must be in the form of an official
relationship between the parties, but need not include a salary or other form of remuneration.

Following is guidance for such documentation, which is required prior to award: The letter should
be prepared on the letterhead of the independent PD/PI and addressed to the Small Business
Concern (SBC). One page is recommended. At a minimum, each letter should (1) verify the
PD/PI’s commitment to the project; (2) refer to the specific project by name; and (3) specify what
assets or services the PI will contribute (e.g. expertise, number of hours/ percent of effort) as well
as the PD/PI’s remuneration. The letter should also indicate that the PD/PI and the SBC have
reached an agreement on proprietary interests for the project to continue to move forward (e.g.,
intellectual property).

Signatures of the Authorized Organization Representative (a.k.a. Signing Official) for the
applicant organization on the Authorized Representative section of the SF424 (R&R) form
and the signature of the duly authorized representative of the research institution
certifies, among other things, that the PD/PI has a formal relationship with/commitment to
the small business concern when the PD/PI is an employee of the Research Institute (RI).

The following are examples of situations describing the official relationship of the PD/PI with the
applicant small business organization:

o PD/PI with a full-time, university appointment may also have appointments with other
organizations (with or without salary) and still appropriately consider his or her commitment
to the university to be “full-time,” consistent with the personnel policies and procedures of
the university applied on a routine basis. The PD/PI’s commitment to the university and
other organizations (including the applicant small business concern) cannot exceed 100% of
his or her total professional effort.

o PD/PI with a full-time, 12-month appointment with a small business concern would be
considered to have a commitment to the applicant organization of 100% of his or her total
professional effort.

« PD/PI who has a part-time appointment with a small business concern and has concurrent
commitments or appointments with organizations in addition to the small business concern
would deem each commitment as a portion of 100% of his or her total professional effort.

As responsible stewards of funds, the NIH is concerned that the PD/PI has the time available to
carry out the proposed STTR research activities. Therefore, it should be clear in the application
that the time proposed for the PD/PI on a particular project is reasonable and it should be clear that
the PD/PI has sufficient time (minimum 10% effort, which is 1.2 calendar months) from among his
or her total professional commitments to devote to this project.
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14. PROJECT DIRECTOR/PRINCIPAL INVESTIGATOR CONTACT INFORMATION

Prefix: First Name: I I Middle Name: | |
LastName: | I Suffix:

Position/Title: | |

Organization Name: I |

Department:| | Division: | |

Streett:

Street2:

City: | County/ Parish: | |

State: | | Province: | |

Country: | USh: UNTTED STATES | ZIP/ Postal Code: | |

Phone Number: | | FaxNumber: | |

Email: | |

15. ESTIMATED PROJECT FUNDING 16. 1S APPLICATION SUBJECT TO REVIEW BY STATE EXECUTIVE ORDER
12372 PROCESS?

2. Total Federal Funds Requested | | = YE s ie 1o Tht STATE EXEaUTE OROSR 12372

b. Total Non-Federal Funds | PROCESS FOR REVIEW ON:

I e
¢. Total Federal & Non-Federal Funds | I
|

b-NO [T PROGRAM IS NOT COVERED BY E.O. 12372; OR

PROGRAM HAS NOT BEEN SELECTED BY S8TATE FOR
REVIEW

d. Estimated Program Income |

17. By signing this application, | certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications* and (2) that the statements herein are
true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. |also provide the required assurances * and agree to comply with any resulting
terms if | accept an award. | am aware that any false, fictitious. or fraudulent statements or claims may subject me to criminal, civil, or
administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 18, Section 1001)

|:| |l agree

*The list of certifications and assurances, or an Internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or agency specific instructions.

18. SFLLL (Pisclosure of Lobbying Activities) or other Explanatory Documentation
[ | | Add Attachment | | Delete Attachment | | View Attachment |

19. Authorized Representative

Prefix: I:I First Name: | | Middle Name: | |
Last Name: | | Suffix:

Position/Title: I I
Organization: I I

Department: | | Division: |
Street1: | |
Street2: | |
city: [ | County / Parish: | |
State: | | Province: | |
Country: | USh: UNITED STATES | ZIP / Postal Code: I I
Phone Number: I I Fax Number: |
Email: | |
Signature of Authorized Representative Date Signed
Completed on submission to Grants.gow Completed on submission to Grants.gov
20. Pre-application [ | | Add Attachment || [Delste Attachment] [ View Attachrment |
21. Cover Letter Attachment | | | Acd Attachment | [Delste Attachment] || view Attachment |

15. Estimated Project Funding




Field Name Instructions

a. Total Federal Funds Enter the total Federal funds, including Direct Costs, F&A Costs
Requested (Indirect Costs), and Fee, requested for the entire project period.

"Q@ According to statutory guidelines, total funding support
(direct costs, indirect costs, fee) normally may not exceed
$150,000 for Phase I awards and $1,000,000 for Phase II
awards. With appropriate justification from the applicant,
Congress will allow awards to exceed these amounts by
up to 50% ($225,000 for Phase I and $1,500,000 for Phase
I, a hard cap). As written in the statute and under
appropriate circumstances, NIH can apply for a waiver
from SBA to issue an award exceeding $225,000 for
Phase T or $1,500,000 for Phase II, if this hard cap will
interfere with NIH s ability to meet its mission. Award
waivers from the SBA are not guaranteed and may delay
the release of funds. Applicants are strongly encouraged
to contact NIH program officials prior to submitting any
award in excess of the guidelines. In all cases, applicants
should propose a budget that is reasonable and appropriate
for completion of the research project. NOTE: CDC,
FDA, and ACF do not make awards above these statutory
guidelines.

b. Total Non-Federal Funds | Enter total non-Federal funds proposed for the entire project
period.

q”’*“~?g For applications to NIH and other PHS agencies, enter
“0” 1in this field unless cost sharing is a requirement for

the specific announcement.

c. Total Federal & Non- Enter total estimated funds for the entire project period, including
Federal Funds both Federal and non-Federal funds. This field is required.

s
o

B,
F
o

",

o For NIH and other PHS agencies applicants, this field will
be the same as Total Federal Funds Requested above
unless the specific announcement indicates that cost
sharing is a requirement.

d. Estimated Program Identify any Program Income estimated for this project period, if
Income applicable. This field is required.

16. Is Application Subject to Review by State Executive Order 12372 Process?




If yes, check box. If the announcement indicates that the program is covered under Executive
Order 12372, applicants should contact the State Single Point of Contact (SPOC) for Federal
Executive Order 12372. If no, check appropriate box.

If block 16a is checked, insert date application was submitted to State.

s
&

%”“w?g For NIH and other PHS agencies submissions using the SF424 (R&R), applicants should
check “No, Program is not covered by E.O. 12372.”

17. Certific